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Marking the 20th anniversary of its establishment along with the arrival of the 21st
century, FamilyMart Co., Ltd., is developing its convenience store operations by
expanding its’ network of stores mainly through its area franchising system. Through
the implepentation of this system, FamilyMart has been expanding its network to
other_eountries in Asia. Net sales by the entire chain of FamilyMart stores, including
domestic and overseas franchised stores, amounted to ¥1,042 billion, marking the first
time FamilyMart’'s sales have exceeded ¥1 ftrillion. FamilyMart’s corporate philosophy is
Co-Growing, which emphasizes cooperation with franchise owners, business partners,
and employees to continually create new value, thereby earning the loyalty of its customers
and contributing to the betterment of society. The Company’s business philosophy is
HUMAN CONVINNOVATION, the latter portmanteau word being derived from convenience
and innovation. This business philosophy emphasizes the operation
of convenience stores that facilitate harmonious interaction among
customers, franchise owners, business partners, and employees.
Under this philosophy, FamilyMart also strives to be an innovator that
leads the industry and eases the urban lifestyles of its customers.
Guided by HUMAN CONVINNOVATION and Co-Growing,
FamilyMart’s aim in the 21st century is to become a Super
Convenience Store that transcends its traditional domain to add
expediency and enjoyment to the lifestyles of its customers.

Cautionary Statement with Respect to Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains statements about FamilyMart’s future business plans and strategies as well as projections of the Company’s business
results. These statements are not based on historical facts. Rather, they represent assumptions and beliefs based on currently available information.
These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that, without limitation, relate to such areas as economic
trends, consumer preferences, and abrupt changes in the market environment. Therefore, readers of this annual report are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Readers should also be aware that actual results may differ from expectations.
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Consolidated Financial Highlights

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
2001 2000 2001

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:

Total OPErating rEVENUES .......ciiiiiiiiiiiee et ¥176,099 ¥147,295 $1,518,095

OPEratiNg INCOME ..vviiiie ittt e s e e e e st ra e e e s enees 24,123 28,098 207,957

NET INCOME ...ttt e s tbre s 8,112 12,960 69,931

Net income per share (in yen and U.S. dollars) (Note 2) ........... 83.5 134.6 0.7

Cash dividends per share (in yen and U.S. dollars) (Note 2) 38.0 38.0 0.3
FINANCIAL POSITION:

TOtAl ASSEES . utviiiii ittt ¥230,883 ¥206,492 $1,990,371

Total shareholders’ equity 126,190 122,555 1,087,845
OTHER DATA:

TOAI STOMES ..o 7,616 7,010

Total SharENOIABIS .vuv i 31,429 16,364

Total full-tiMe EMPIOYEES .. .uvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei e 3,917 —

Notes: 1. Conversion into U.S. dollars has been made at the exchange rate of ¥116=U.S.$1, the rate prevailing on February 28, 2001.
2. Per share data has been adjusted for free share distributions and stock splits.
3. From fiscal 2001, total full-time employees is shown on a consolidated basis. Data for past years is not shown.
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Michio Tanabe

President and Representative Director,
Chief Executive Officer

Despite persistently harsh economic conditions, FamilyMart Co., Ltd., continued to expand its store network during fiscal 2001,
ended February 28, 2001. During the year, FamilyMart added a net 606 new outlets, including domestic and overseas franchised
outlets, bringing the total number of stores in its network to 7,616 at fiscal year-end. This extensive store network, together with its
comprehensive system that includes outstanding merchandising, store management, and logistics capabilities as well as abundant
knowledge, forms a solid foundation that allows FamilyMart to maintain a superior competitive position in Japan’s retail industry.
While maximizing these strengths, FamilyMart has launched its full-scale entry into the field of e-commerce and is meeting new
challenges in this field as it aims for an optimal fusion of its cyberspace virtual business with its physical operations. & Regarding its
brick-and-mortar stores, FamilyMart is focusing on raising the levels of its service, quality, and cleanliness (QSC) and providing
education and training for store staff. In food products, we are working to further enhance the appeal of our highly popular line of
Nakashoku items (delicatessen-type take-out foods), which have become a core product in driving the
overall sales of FamilyMart. In e-commerce, we started an Internet shopping service, which is based on a
FamilyMart original business model, that will function as a pillar of our E-Retail business. & As with other
e-commerce-related services, we will pursue the boundless potential of our E-Retail business and strive
to secure a growing number of customers. As it builds a solid foundation as a Super Convenience Store
(CVS), FamilyMart will aim for continued growth in fiscal 2002.
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Could you describe your business
results for fiscal 2001?

FamilyMart operated within an exceedingly challenging
business environment during the fiscal year under review.
Although the Japanese economy briefly showed signs of
a mild improvement, personal consumption in particular
remained sluggish throughout the year, reflecting record-
high unemployment rates.

Amid this environment, FamilyMart recorded a 19.6% rise
in consolidated total operating revenues, to ¥176.1 billion.
However, recurring income declined 11.2%, to ¥26.2 billion,
and net income was down 37.4%, to ¥8.1 billion. These
declines can be attributed primarily to two factors, namely
slower growth in sales at existing stores and thinner profit
margins. Examining these factors more closely, decelerating
sales growth at existing stores reflected lackluster con-
sumer spending and a shift in the composition of household
spending marked by a greater proportion of expenditures in
such IT-related areas as mobile telephones and the Internet.
Also, intensifying competition in the CVS industry has been
aggravated by external competitive pressures from compa-
nies in other industries, including the extension of operating
hours by supermarkets and an expanded product lineup at
drugstores. Such outlets as supermarkets and drugstores
are emerging as potent adversaries. Despite intense com-
petition in fiscal 2001, the number of customers using
FamilyMart stores increased, and the rate of decline in
the average value of items purchased per customer has
improved from the previous fiscal year.

FamilyMart’s margin on net sales has been improving
after bottoming out in May 2000. However, surging sales
of such low-profit items as alcoholic beverages, cigarettes,
and game software are largely offsetting increased profit
margins on other types of products, such as food products.

What are some of the main policies

FamilyMart will implement in fiscal 2002?

We have designated fiscal 2002 as the “Year for
Reforming the Structure of Our Operations,” as we strive
for an upgrading of our chain operations and an extensive

revamping of our corporate structure. The main pillar of
these efforts, through which we aim to bolster our corporate
foundation, is our “Five Internal Reforms,” which focus on
reforming areas related to employee awareness, corporate
organization, management systems, costs, and business
processes. The following is a more detailed description

of the five target areas of our reform initiatives.

Awareness Reforms
Any efforts devoted to revamping our operations are
doomed to failure unless they are also accompanied by
a complete transformation of employee awareness. All
employees will reaffirm their awareness of FamilyMart’s
social mission toward its customers and its mission as a
franchiser toward its franchised stores. At the same time,
FamilyMart will create a corporate culture in which employ-
ees who have a sense of self-improvement and carry out
forward-looking activities are highly valued. To achieve this
objective, we are strengthening our training system to allow
each individual employee to carry out self reform.

Organizational Reforms
A primary objective of our organizational reforms is to clarify
responsibilities for increasing revenues. As a first step in
these reforms, we are further clarifying authority and respon-
sibility for revenues under our regional business system.*
We also completed a number of reforms at headquarters
during fiscal 2001. These measures included building our
headquarters into a highly functional and efficient organi-
zation and establishing a structure conducive to the rapid
implementation of further reforms.

System Reforms
We plan to establish a new personnel system that facilitates
the development of self-motivated employees who maintain
a healthy perspective on crises, can tackle new challenges
head on, and devote their entire energy to the workplace.
Reforms to our personnel and other systems are ultimately
aimed at raising revenues at franchised stores and head-
quarters. We will strive to fairly evaluate employees’ actual
work performance and their job-related knowledge.

*The regional business system involves strategically dividing the
entire country into wide commercial regions, with the persons
(executive directors) responsible for overseeing the respective
regions being delegated a wide range of authority.
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An Interview with the President
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© Cost Reforms

FamilyMart remains committed to supporting its franchised
stores. However, to ensure that FamilyMart can successfully
fulfill its mission as a CVS chain operator within the current
harsh operating environment, we plan to thoroughly review
costs at headquarters and implement bold cost reduction
measures to build a lean and robust cost structure.

@ Business Process Reforms

To reform our business processes, we have set up cross-
sectional task forces, including the Structural Reform Com-
mittee and the Ordering Precision Improvement Committee,
and have strengthened horizontal links between departments
and functions throughout the Company. By allocating authority
to these task forces and operating them in a functional
manner, we also seek to develop policies and strategies
that incorporate the needs and ideas of FamilyMart opera-
tions in each region, of staff in charge of store development,
and of supervisors of franchised stores.

The collective aim of the previously mentioned five indi-
vidual reforms is to build FamilyMart into an enterprise that
maximizes franchisees’ capabilities and serves its customers
and franchisees properly and flexibly. Through these measures,
FamilyMart is focusing especially on achieving such tangible
results as growth in profits within a fixed period of time,
which is a goal shared by all franchised stores.

FamilyMart 2001

Q Could you explain some of your specific
strategies for strengthening your store
management capabilities?

A FamilyMart is making tremendous strides toward becom-
ing what it calls a Super CVS. Since the Company’s estab-
lishment 20 years ago, QSC has served as the foundation
of store operations and will continue to do so in the future.

From January 2001, we proceeded with the introduction
of the New Store System. This system is an effective tool
for monitoring individual products and will allow us to
significantly raise the precision of our ordering, which is a
key determinant of success in the retail industry. By being
able to more accurately monitor products, we are able to
ensure that our stores are always stocked with the individual
products demanded by our customers. This system will also
help reduce losses caused by stockouts, supporting increases
in daily sales at each franchise and enabling stores to secure
a stable base of customers.

We are also introducing the Store Staff Total System
(SST) at all stores. SST is a highly efficient system for
educating, motivating, and instilling a greater sense of
responsibility in all employees. This system also includes
a program designed to distribute the burden of product
ordering among all staff at stores rather than assigning
sole responsibility for this often cumbersome task to the
store manager. By alleviating the burden of having sole
responsibility for monitoring over 3,800 types of individual
products at each store, store managers are now able to
devote a greater portion of their time to the overall manage-
ment of their respective stores. Testimony to the effectiveness
of this system, sales at franchised stores introducing this
system have been rising.

Q What is your merchandising strategy?
A\ Nakashoku items, which are delicatessen-style take-out
foods, represent one of our core products. FamilyMart has
formed a project team to develop new Nakashoku products,
focusing these efforts largely on bentos, or box lunches. In
fiscal 2001, this project team continued to develop a number
of hit Nakashoku products, most notably Tobikiri Gohan and
Shiki no Gohan. In developing such products, the project



team emphasizes authentic flavors and nutritional balance
as well as seasonal foods. Other noteworthy products intro-
duced during the fiscal year included Kitchen-Fresh Beef
Burgers and Bon Curry Bread, both of which achieved
particularly strong sales.

FamilyMart is also overhauling its sales strategies, which
play a key role in supporting its merchandising. By revising
sales strategies, we aim to become the CVS of choice among
all consumers regardless of gender and age. In past years,
FamilyMart increased the number of customers to its stores
by appealing to specific consumer segments, mainly young
female consumers seeking a sense of refinement in their
lives. Today, FamilyMart is striving to enhance the impact
of advertising targeted at its core customers—young
consumers and middle-aged men.

In fiscal 2002, FamilyMart will focus on fortifying
Nakashoku items as the pillar of its distinctive lineup
of food products. Specifically, we plan to introduce over
400 new Nakashoku products, centering on rice products,
as well as side dishes, prepared breads, and desserts.

In everyday-use products, FamilyMart will increase and
strengthen its existing lineup of private-brand (PB) goods.

Q) How would you describe your store
development strategies?

A our top priority in store development is creating high-
quality stores in prime locations within operating environments
conducive to growth. We avoid the creation of stores with
low daily sales volumes by all means possible. As a first
step in our quest to develop high-quality stores, we have
increased our staff in charge of store development by 30,
to 150. At the same time, we introduced the FamilyMart
Geographic Information System (FM-GIS), an information
evaluation system for assessing potential locations for
future FamilyMart stores. The introduction of this system
will assist FamilyMart in making highly precise and accurate
decisions in selecting locations for new stores. It should be
noted that the implementation of this system will in no way
diminish the importance of store development supervisors,
and we will still count heavily on the capabilities of these
supervisors to determine appropriate store locations.

As an effective means of developing stores, we are
also considering multistore management through existing
franchised stores, which possess an abundance of accu-
mulated know-how among their staff. We are proceeding
with preparations, including the establishment of incentives,
necessary for carrying out this business.

As an integral component of its store development strat-
egy, FamilyMart is also implementing the Build-and-Scrap
policy. Initially, we will close unprofitable directly owned stores.
Also, upon consultation and agreement with store owners,
FamilyMart encourages moving the location of underper-
forming franchised stores, particularly those in competitively
disadvantageous locations or in markets with dim growth
prospects. FamilyMart’s Build-and-Scrap policy is based
on the Company’s Co-Growing corporate philosophy.

During fiscal 2002, we plan to close 500 stores, includ-
ing 30% of our directly owned stores. At the same time,
we will add 450 high-quality stores to strengthen our
chain operations.

Q What is your vision for the future?

A\ With severe business conditions expected to persist, we
will focus on effectively allocating our management resources
to create value for franchised stores and our customers,
which we believe will ultimately benefit our shareholders.

We foresee our E-Retail business as having boundless
potential and expect operations in this field to become a pillar
of our efforts to build FamilyMart into a Super CVS. Even
with additional investment, we expect that fiscal 2002 will
be an incubation period for our E-Retail business. However,
we anticipate related operations will begin to achieve sig-
nificant growth from fiscal 2003.

Looking at FamilyMart’s operations as a whole, we
expect to generate non-consolidated net sales of ¥1 trillion
in fiscal 2004. As an important means of attaining this target,
we will focus on creating unsurpassed corporate value in
fiscal 2002.

In closing, we thank our shareholders for their past
support and ask for their backing in the year ahead.

FamilyMart 2001
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Review of Operations

With the dawn of the 21st century, FamilyMart is dedicated to
becoming a “Contending Group” filled with energy and vigor
and acting as a wellspring of creativity. In pursuing this
goal, FamilyMart headquarters and franchisees will redou-
ble their efforts to work as a single team. Although we
have entered a new century, the most essential element of
our CVS operations has remained unchanged and that is
an unwavering commitment to fine-tuning the precision
of our ordering capabilities to maintain a fresh and
appealing product mix that satisfies the evolving prefer-
ences of each individual customer. At the same time, we
are placing high priority on improving our QSC, which
underpins our entire CVS operations. To maximize the
effectiveness of its store management tools, FamilyMart
headquarters will also continue to provide comprehen-
sive support for franchised stores.

Raising the Precision of Our

Product-Ordering Capabilities

The overriding aim of our efforts to pursue greater precision in ordering is to
completely eliminate losses caused by inadequate stocks and thus create more

opportunities for selling products. Improving the precision of our ordering will

also play a key role in allowing us to earn the trust of our customers, record higher

sales, and secure a base of loyal customers.

& As afirst step toward enhancing the precision of ordering, in May 2000 we intro-

duced Face-Trend Analysis—which tracks and analyzes information for approximately

400 products by category, delivery number, and other criteria—at each franchised store.
Face-Trend Analysis facilitates FamilyMart’s efforts to quickly ascertain fast- and slow-selling
products, thereby allowing the Company to order appropriate supplies of products in demand

by its customers while eliminating those for which demand is weak.

& As another vital tool for enhancing precise ordering capabilities, FamilyMart has been imple-
menting its New Store System, which supports product monitoring, since January 2001. This system
allows FamilyMart to order products based on actual sales of individual items instead of in response to e
overall demand in a general category. By introducing the New Store System, we also aim to create an -
image in the minds of consumers that FamilyMart stores stock abundant supplies of those products actually

desired by customers. Amid evolving and diversifying consumer preferences, FamilyMart is also raising ordering
precision by analyzing customer demand for individual products based on a wide assortment of information, including
purchasing trends by the day of the week and the time of day as well as weather conditions. This information is collected
and sent from FamilyMart headquarters to franchised stores via satellite.

Introducing SATs and Sharing Ordering Responsibilities s
FamilyMart has introduced new handheld store activation terminals (SATs) that provide solid support for monitoring individual products ¥
within more than 3,800 product categories. SATS help sales staff to ascertain the state of inventories and supplies of individual products both
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on display shelves and based on actual product sales results. SATs thus serve as a beneficial tool for determining what
products should be stocked or eliminated and the appropriate volume of products to be ordered.
& There are various limits on the abilities of store managers to carry out product monitoring and ordering single-
handedly. With this in mind, FamilyMart is working to promote a sharing of the ordering burden among store
personnel by building a structure that permits all store staff to place product orders.

Maximizing the Capabilities of Store Staff
A key to realizing our goal of dividing the responsibilities for product ordering is to raise the skill
levels of our store personnel, who are ultimately responsible for the frontline implementation
of QSC. Therefore, staff training is a top management issue at FamilyMart. To facilitate its
staff-training activities, in April 2000 FamilyMart began the full-scale implementation of a
training program called the Store Staff Total System (SST). SST is a systematic program
that emphasizes attracting, educating, motivating, and remunerating staff. Under this
program, training is implemented in stages—beginner, intermediate, and advanced
stages—to ensure that staff continually raise their skill levels. SST will permit
store staff to acquire vital know-how on product ordering among other skills.
& The implementation of SST has already yielded such significant results
as allowing a large number of franchised stores to achieve steady improve-
ments in QSC. As mentioned, SST also promotes a sharing of ordering
responsibilities at individual stores, facilitates the collection of various
types of information, and helps FamilyMart respond rapidly and accu-
rately to customer needs. In addition, the introduction of SST has
generated other benefits, including encouraging staff to take a pro-
active approach to their jobs as well as promoting a heightened
sense of responsibility. In quantitative terms, SST has yielded sales
increases that range from 3% to 20% for all product categories
at franchised stores.
& FamilyMart is not resting on these achievements and believes
that ongoing efforts to attain higher levels of QSC are crucial. Store
supervisors, who are vital to the operations of franchised stores,
provide support by using their personal experience and utilizing
mobile terminals to access data gathered from point-of-sale (POS)
terminals and order-related information from data warehouses.
Through the previously mentioned measures, FamilyMart intends to
build optimal store management strategies as it works hand in hand
with franchised stores.
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Review of Operations

Expanding Our Store Network

Confronted once again with harsh business conditions in
fiscal 2001, FamilyMart focused its store network develop-
ment activities on opening high-quality new stores. Through
such efforts, FamilyMart expanded its network of stores by 606
stores, to 7,616 stores at fiscal year-end, comprising 5,812
stores, including those operated by area franchising companies,

in Japan and 1,804 stores overseas.

& Fiscal 2001 saw FamilyMart make significant strides in expanding its
presence in Japan. Following the opening of our first store in Yamaguchi

Prefecture—a store in Shimanoseki Gity—in December 2000, we established

a presence in the Shikoku region by opening three stores in Kagawa Prefec-

ture in March 2001. With these new store openings, FamilyMart expanded its

presence in Japan to 37 prefectures. Also in March 2001, in Hiroshima, we expanded

the areas in which we open new stores. FamilyMart is also vigorously implementing its strategy
of achieving dominance in Chugoku, a commercial region that offers ample room for
opening additional stores.

Opening New-Style Stores

As part of its innovative store-opening strategy, in cooperation with the National
Federation of Agricultural Cooperative Association (ZEN-NOH), FamilyMart has

been opening new stores attached to self-service gasoline stations. In fiscal

2001, FamilyMart continued to emphasize the opening of new types of stores.

As a prime example, FamilyMart opened a new store inside the Mitsui Urban

Hotel, situated in the upscale Ginza district of Tokyo. We also opened stores inside

the Kansai Airport Washington Hotel (Rinko Town, Osaka) and the Sakuragicho
Washington Hotel (Yokohama). In addition, FamilyMart opened a new store in
Sunshine City, a mammoth shopping complex in the lkebukuro section of Tokyo,

and this store has continued to report robust results. Other noteworthy store openings
during the year included a store inside the Tama City Monorail’'s Chuo Daigaku/Meisei
Daigaku Station. This store has proven to be highly popular among university students.
& By making vigorous efforts to open high-quality, innovative stores, we are expanding our cus-
tomer base for FamilyMart stores while elevating FamilyMart’s name recognition level and brand image.

Strategies for Store Development in the 21st Century

Store development is the lifeblood of a CVS chain. Accordingly, increasing and strengthening store development capabilities

will be paramount for propelling FamilyMart’s ongoing development in the 21st century. As it progresses with its store development

activities, in fiscal 2001 FamilyMart will devote its energies toward realizing the objective of such policies as “becoming the number-one store
in each region” and “working to become the dominant store.”

& To support its store development initiatives, FamilyMart has introduced the new FM-GIS. Under this system, each commercial region in
Japan is divided into detailed subregions, and FamilyMart will carefully analyze and evaluate the possibilities for opening new stores within
each of these subregions. FamilyMart plans to skillfully combine data from this system with the knowledge and experience of staff in charge
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Store Development

of store development to achieve synergies that will serve as a basis for making highly precise and accurate judgments for
k determining the locations of new stores.
E . @ In fiscal 2001, we adopted a strategy for opening stores in Awajishima that emphasized opening stores with such
upgraded features as parking lots. By taking such measures, we are also able to implement our dominant store strategy
in advance of competing stores.

i~ Implementing Our Build-and-Scrap Policy and Operating Multistore Complexes
- As an essential element of its store development activities, in fiscal 2002 FamilyMart intends to continue
implementing its Build-and-Scrap strategy. In keeping with this strategy, FamilyMart plans to discuss mea-
sures to improve store performance with the owners of underperforming franchised stores that are facing
adverse operating conditions. Measures to be considered include moving store locations. In seeking more
advantageous locations, we will emphasize the selection of sites that offer sufficient space for parking
lots, which have a significant impact on drawing customers to stores. There are already numerous
instances of franchised FamilyMart stores that have surmounted various obstacles and achieved
sharp gains in performance merely by moving a short distance to a new location.

& On another front, to aggrandize the benefits of management know-how gained from operat-
ing existing stores, we also engaged in the operation of multistore complexes. Our involvement
in multistore complex operations has several advantages, chief among these being the dispersal
! iy of risk management for store operations. Also, as we aim for area dominance, multistore opera-
tions will serve as a potent weapon for restraining store openings by rival stores. In June 2001,
we plan to launch preferential measures for franchised store owners and move to establish

a system for more effectively managing multistore complexes.

FamilyMart’s Overseas Store Development Strategy

FamilyMart established its first overseas
store in 1988 with the opening of a store
in Taiwan. In December 2000, FamilyMart
reached an important milestone by open-
ing its 1,000th outlet in Taiwan. Amid
intensifying competition, FamilyMart has
rapidly expanded its store network in
Taiwan since the opening of its 500th
store there in 1997. In the future as well,
FamilyMart will make efforts to establish
market dominance, upgrade and strength-
en its infrastructure, and aggressively
expand its store network. In fiscal 2002,
Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd., plans to
make an over-the-counter share listing.

In South Korea, FamilyMart has ex-
panded its network to 659 stores since

commencing operations in that country
10 years ago. Despite sluggish personal
consumption, FamilyMart expects to
record favorable results based on local
projections that total sales in South
Korea’s CVS industry will grow.

e

FamilyMart opened its first store in
Thailand in 1993 and now operates 112
stores in that country. We plan to steadily
increase the size of this network and
achieve robust sales in the early days
of the new century.
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Review of Operations

In any era, it goes without saying that “selling products is the crux of FamilyMart’s operations.” Accordingly,
our most vital tasks are to strengthen our merchandising capabilities along with improving store man-
agement capabilities. Based on the catchphrase “products that continually stand out,” we remain
committed to offering only products that ensure high levels of customer satisfaction.

Upgrading Our Lineup of Nakashoku Products
Our lineup of Nakashoku items accounts for one-third of sales and thus plays a vital role in determining overall sales.
In fiscal 2001, we continued to take a highly meticulous and discriminating approach to developing Nakashoku
items. At the beginning of each year, a Nakashoku product development team proposes and plans a 52-week

menu for bentos (box lunches), onigiri (rice balls), sushi, prepared noodles, bread, and side dishes. To create
Nakashoku items, FamilyMart’s product development teams draws on the collective talents of represen-

tatives from related manufacturers, chefs, and food coordinators. The team also plans the Nakashoku

lineup taking into consideration such factors as seasonal availability of foods, ingredient prices, and

marketing factors. As underlying objectives, the team aims for the creation of price competitive

and flavorful products with distinctive and appealing features. Through such efforts,

FamilyMart has created a steady stream of year-round hit products in such categories as

bentos, onigiri, and spaghetti.

& Our Kitchen-Fresh Beef Burgers offer a distinctively flavorful taste comparable to

those prepared by restaurants specializing in hamburgers. The immensely popular

Kitchen-Fresh Beef Burgers do not use additives and use bread that does not get -
soggy when microwaved. To promote sales of Kitchen-Fresh Beef Burgers, in -“"f
February 2001 FamilyMart held weekend half-price sales. Testimony to the success _a -'_"

of these promotional efforts, FamilyMart sold an average of approximately
500,000 Kitchen-Fresh Beef Burgers a day, a figure considered high even in
the hamburger industry. Over a six-week period, FamilyMart also held a limited-
supply sale of Bon Curry Bread. During this campaign, FamilyMart sold out
its entire supply of approximately five million loaves of Bon Curry Bread.

& In the second half of fiscal 2001, FamilyMart posted a 20% increase in
sales of prepared noodles from the same period of the previous fiscal year.
We achieved this increase by offering special noodles with a wide selection
of sauces matched to the tastes of consumers in specific geographic regions.

Vigorously Targeting the Growing Market
for Nakashoku ltems

Young consumers and middle-aged men account for the lion’s share of
Nakashoku item sales. However, a recent survey* revealed that amounts
spent per month on Nakashoku items in all consumer segments were growing
rapidly. Particularly noteworthy was an approximately 80% increase in spend-
ing on Nakashoku items over the past several years by homemakers and senior
citizens. To respond to the expected growth of this market, in fiscal 2002
FamilyMart will focus even more closely on the development of its Nakashoku lineup
and intends to introduce 400 new Nakashoku items, including 100 types of bentos.

* Food Service Industry Research Center
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& Qur Nakashoku product development team, which has compiled an extensive

record of achievement, plans to revamp its organizational structure to further bolster

its product creation capabilities. Also, in close collaboration with various man-

ufacturers, this team plans to create new value by jointly developing original
items, including sauces, seasonings, and side dishes.

Introducing Appealing New Nakashoku ltems
For our favorably acclaimed Tobikiri Gohan series, we have reviewed
the frequency with which we introduce new menus as well as the
number of products offered in this series. Specifically, during the year
we created more than double the number of variations offered in fiscal
2000. We also devised new concepts in our Shiki no Gohan series of
seasonal bentos. As two new pillars of our offerings in prepared noodles,
we introduced Double Sauce Items, including Tororo and Daikon
Oroshi sauces.
& FamilyMart is also going to great lengths to enhance the flavor of
its sandwiches, which account for more than 70% of sales of prepared
i bread products. These efforts are focused on upgrading the quality
] d and flavor of our bread and ingredients as well as enhancing the quality
of our popular Kitchen-Fresh Beef Burger.
& In cup-packaged noodles, which make up approximately 50% of
processed food sales, FamilyMart will continue to develop distinctive PB
cup-packaged noodles. In confectioneries and candies, FamilyMart is offer-
ing Muji Ryohin confectioneries in various sizes according to the needs of cus-
tomers. In spring 2001, FamilyMart launched sales of a new type of ice cream
containing melted cheese as an ingredient. The first such ice cream in the
industry to be developed through a tie-up with a prominent ice cream manufacturer,
this product has already become a mainstay in our lineup of original desserts.

Bolstering Our Lineup of Everyday Merchandise
We plan to fortify and increase our lineup of everyday merchandise in fiscal 2002, in line
with our goal of raising the percentage of sales of such merchandise to 30% of total PB
sales, up from 15% in fiscal 2001. To achieve this objective, we will make a full-scale launch
of our original makeup series for women in their 20s and 30s. We will also review all sizes, colors,
and patterns in our ALL DAYS PQSi line of popular, high-quality apparel and miscellaneous merchan-
dise that project a sense of simple elegance. FamilyMart also intends to expand its lineup of ALL DAYS
POSi merchandise. In cooperation with Sanrio Co., Ltd., FamilyMart is also selling Hello Kitty goods, mainly

special-sale items, on a four-to-six-week cycle.
© FamilyMart does not intend to stand pat on its achievements in merchandising and will continue to tackle new
challenges to ensure it remains on a growth path.
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The World’s First EC Franchise System
Fiscal 2001 witnessed FamilyMart’s full-fledged foray into e-commerce with the launch of its E-Retail business. Specifically,
in October 2000 we inaugurated famima.com Co., Ltd., an Internet shopping site with approximately 30,000 items. In
contrast to other CVS shopping sites, famima.com is not based on centralized management from headquarters. Instead,
franchised stores have their own on-site virtual stores, where they record and manage their own retailing activities.
The foundation of the famima.com site is our proprietary e-commerce business model, “The FamilyMart EC Franchise
System,” under which each franchised store handles and accepts famima club membership registrations from
customers. When a customer subsequently purchases an item on the famima.com site, the franchised store that
handled the registration is credited with the sale. By combining virtual shopping with physical stores, franchised
stores can significantly upgrade their store management capabilities. FamilyMart has submitted a patent application
for this innovative business model.

A New Development from famima.com
As of April 2001, there were approximately 400,000 famima club members throughout Japan, and FamilyMart aims to
increase this to two million members in fiscal 2003. At the same time, FamilyMart has launched a site compliant with

i-mode Internet protocols, famima-i. In tandem with the establishment of this site, FamilyMart launched Fami Kore Pia,

a free-of-charge magazine containing information on various subjects. Fami Kore Pia is an upgraded magazine published with

the editorial cooperation of PIA Corporation and incorporates contents gleaned from famima.com as well as famima-i. The surging
use of mobile phones has been accompanied by a steady increase in the number of i-mode users utilizing Fami Kore Pia and famima-i.
& From April 2001, we initiated a home food delivery service through a trial tie-up between famima.com and a company that specializes
in home delivery food services to senior citizens. This tie-up reflects FamilyMart’s determination to make inroads into highly promising senior
citizen markets.

Installing Famiport Multimedia Kiosks (MMKs) and ATMs in Our Stores

In December 2000, we began introducing Famiport MMKSs in our stores. These MMKs boast a diverse range of func-
tions that include providing customers with information and allowing them to order and arrange for delivery of
coupons and tickets for travel and entertainment events as well as other related products. Using MMKS,

customers can also download digital music and obtain prints from digital cameras. FamilyMart plans
to expand the range of products and services available through these MMKs. For example, in fall
2001 customers will also be able to use MMKs to apply for insurance with The Tokio Marine &

Fire Insurance Co., Ltd. We foresee an almost unlimited range of potential for Famiport MMKS,
including the handling of such government administrative tasks as issuing resident verifica-

tion certificates as well as issuing airline tickets.

& FamilyMart is also installing ATMs in its stores. As of April 2001, ATMs in FamilyMart

stores handled transactions for 21 banks and have commenced 24-hour service for several

of these banks. FamilyMart plans to have installed ATMs in 3,500 stores by spring 2002.

Applying the Strengths of Our Physical Operations
to Our Virtual Business

As we undertake our E-Retail business, we are using the strengths of FamilyMart’s physical
stores to support the e-commerce businesses of companies with which FamilyMart has formed
tie-ups. Our e-commerce payment collection agency service permits those customers unwilling to
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provide credit card information on the Internet to make cash payments at any FamilyMart store. FamilyMart's Open Cash on Delivery (OCOD)
Service also allows customers to pay cash for purchases made on the Internet as well as pick up these items at FamilyMart stores.
& These services, coupled with Famiport MMKs and ATMs installed in stores, are underpinning FamilyMart’s efforts to
attract new customers. In addition, famima.com members are visiting stores to make payments and collect
ordered merchandise, which is also fueling an increase in store sales.

@® FamilyMart EC Franchise System

Customers (members) can visit the virtual store of their choice.

MBE Japan Opens an Outlet in Sunshine City

Mail Boxes Etc. franchises serve as busi-
ness centers to meet demand for business-
outsourcing services and in the small
office/nome office (SOHO) market. MBE
Japan, Inc., has concluded a master
franchise agreement with Mail Boxes Etc.
USA, Inc., of the United States. MBE Japan,
established as a wholly owned FamilyMart
subsidiary, is developing its network of
directly owned and franchised outlets. In
March 2001, MBE Japan received an
investment from ITOCHU Pulp & Paper
Corp.

In February 2001, the MBE Sunshine
60 outlet, a directly managed outlet, was
opened in the lkebukuro district of Tokyo.
The MBE Sunshine 60 outlet offers one-
stop business solutions by providing a

significantly upgraded range of services
that includes sales of airline tickets
through a tie-up with Pacific Tour Systems
Co., Ltd. The outlet is also carrying out
trials of various services targeted
at non-Japanese customers, including

This on-line franchise
system is designed to
allow easy access to
every store in the
FamilyMart network
through a single on-line
site, famima.com.

T

FamilyMart headquarters
handles each virtual store

as it does actual franchised
stores and provides manage-
ment guidance in this area.

PC rentals that integrate software allow-
ing the use of various Asian languages.
The offering of such services highlights
MBE Japan’s commitment to further
developing its business.
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Toward Optimal Logistics

Since fiscal 1997, FamilyMart has made steady strides in implementing its Logistics Infrastructure Plan. This plan was
devised based on the concepts “product shipments by temperature range,” “independent deliveries in each
region,” and “mixed-lot deliveries.” The Logistics Infrastructure Plan is aimed at ensuring that strong-selling
merchandise arrives at stores prior to peak demand periods. Strenuous efforts to guarantee timely deliveries
to our stores are yielding significant results and represent a key strategy for further enhancing our out-

standing merchandising capabilities and raising the level of precision ordering at franchised stores.
& Shipping products by temperature range involves preserving products at their respective optimal
temperatures between the production plant and store to ensure products reach customers at
the pinnacle of freshness. Carrying out independent deliveries within each region requires the
- establishment of logistics bases that can autonomously supply each geographic region to
~._ensure stable just-in-time (JIT) deliveries of products demanded by customers. Mixed-lot
. deliveries entail the handling of products with different temperature requirements at the
- same distribution centers and using trucks partitioned according to temperature while
:'working to raise the efficiency and preciseness of deliveries. By combining these three

i . L - concepts, we have upgraded our distribution capabilities in a number of key areas.

Reform of Our Logistics Network Yields Significant Results
In fiscal 1997, FamilyMart operated 204 delivery centers for handling products
according to their respective temperature requirements. In its unending quest to
enhance efficiency, FamilyMart had streamlined these facilities into 89 centers as of
fiscal 2001. FamilyMart has also made important headway in constructing integrated
distribution centers that combine delivery centers with production facilities for bentos
and desserts. By fiscal 2001 year-end, we had 14 of these centers and plan to
open two more in fiscal 2002. Our Toda, Fukushima, and Tohoku centers use delivery
vehicles equipped with global positioning system (GPS) units that allow these
centers to promptly dispatch alternate delivery vehicles when a primary vehicle is
caught in traffic or in the unlikely event of a mechanical breakdown. By utilizing
GPS, we have achieved a 99.9% JIT delivery rate, defined as deliveries within 15
minutes of scheduled arrival.
& Infiscal 2001, we focused on rationalizing our delivery system for frozen foods
and also introduced “stock-and-through” delivery to promote smoother deliveries.
Supporting this “stock-and-through” delivery are the western Kanto, eastern
Kanto, and Chubu stock centers, which commenced operation during fiscal 2001.
& The reform of its logistics infrastructure has improved several areas of
FamilyMart’s distribution, including reduced delivery times, decreased number of
delivery runs to each store, and significantly shorter lead times from ordering to delivery.
& FamilyMart is also improving delivery vehicle load ratios. In fiscal 2001, an average
of 10 trucks were required to make deliveries to each store daily, down from 22
trucks in fiscal 1991. Besides reducing delivery costs and workloads at each store,
fewer truck deliveries contribute to environmental protection by lowering the volume of
exhaust emissions and cutting energy usage.
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Protection

Aiming to Become an Environment-Friendly CVS

FamilyMart has obtained ISO 14001 certification for all its business offices and stores. We are now implement-
ing specific measures based on the slogan “Let each person love nature and protect the environment.”
Examples of measures taken include using containers and wrapping that do not emit toxic gases when
incinerated, introducing environment-friendly staff uniforms and such sales promotion materials as
flags, and utilizing delivery vehicles that place minimal burden on the environment.

& FamilyMart once again demonstrated its commitment to protecting the environment in fiscal

2001 when it commenced operation of a waste material recycling system in the 23 wards of

Tokyo as well as in Kyoto. FamilyMart also opened a new outlet in Nagoya that uses the CVS

industry’s first integrated heat storage system.

& Also in fiscal 2001, FamilyMart opened a new Eco-Shop in Sendai that integrates

a solar power system and energy conservation system. This store became FamilyMart’s

10th Eco-Shop, following the opening of the first in 1997. Also in fiscal 2001, we added

14 new items to our We Love Green lineup of environment-friendly PB daily-use mer-

chandise and now offer 30 such items.

& Details about the previously mentioned activities are explained in the FamilyMart

Environmental Activity Report. This publication is distributed to consumers, various | T eaa

types of organizations, and companies. The 2000 version of this report included, for eyt =
the first time, a section on environmental auditing, which made public FamilyMart’s

expenditures and results in its environment protection efforts. " id
& To publicize its environmental activities, FamilyMart holds We Love Green con- J = s
certs. At these concerts, FamilyMart solicits donations for protecting the natural
environment of Oze and distributes the funds to the Oze Protection Committee
Organization. To show its gratitude for these funds, this organization sent a letter of S o~
appreciation to FamilyMart. In addition, FamilyMart was presented with the Clean T
Consumer Award from Green Consumer Tokyo Net and the Tokyo Chamber of

Commerce. FamilyMart was presented with this in recognition of its promotion of an

environment-friendly CVS chain and its development of We Love Green products.

& In the future, FamilyMart intends to carry out its operations in the 21st century

in a manner consistent with maintaining the natural beauty of the Earth.

Cooperating with Save the Children and :‘ tj‘,’"‘“”'{"_ N
Helping Promote the Spread of Donor Cards ‘ R

In cooperating with Save the Children Japan (SCJ), FamilyMart has placed donation

boxes in each of its stores since July 1993. SCJ is an independent self-supporting
nongovernmental organization that provides assistance for improving the educa-

tion and lifestyles of children, mainly in Asian countries. As of February 2001, thanks

to the goodwill of its patrons, FamilyMart stores had collected a cumulative total of
¥283 million in donations since 1993.

& In April 1999, FamilyMart placed organ donor cards in all its stores. By doing so,
FamilyMart is providing people willing to become organ donors with the opportunity to
obtain a donor card.
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Review of Operations

With the dawn of the 21st century, FamilyMart is dedicated to
becoming a “Contending Group” filled with energy and vigor
and acting as a wellspring of creativity. In pursuing this
goal, FamilyMart headquarters and franchisees will redou-
ble their efforts to work as a single team. Although we
have entered a new century, the most essential element of
our CVS operations has remained unchanged and that is
an unwavering commitment to fine-tuning the precision
of our ordering capabilities to maintain a fresh and
appealing product mix that satisfies the evolving prefer-
ences of each individual customer. At the same time, we
are placing high priority on improving our QSC, which
underpins our entire CVS operations. To maximize the
effectiveness of its store management tools, FamilyMart
headquarters will also continue to provide comprehen-
sive support for franchised stores.

Raising the Precision of Our

Product-Ordering Capabilities

The overriding aim of our efforts to pursue greater precision in ordering is to
completely eliminate losses caused by inadequate stocks and thus create more

opportunities for selling products. Improving the precision of our ordering will

also play a key role in allowing us to earn the trust of our customers, record higher

sales, and secure a base of loyal customers.

& As afirst step toward enhancing the precision of ordering, in May 2000 we intro-

duced Face-Trend Analysis—which tracks and analyzes information for approximately

400 products by category, delivery number, and other criteria—at each franchised store.
Face-Trend Analysis facilitates FamilyMart’s efforts to quickly ascertain fast- and slow-selling
products, thereby allowing the Company to order appropriate supplies of products in demand

by its customers while eliminating those for which demand is weak.

& As another vital tool for enhancing precise ordering capabilities, FamilyMart has been imple-
menting its New Store System, which supports product monitoring, since January 2001. This system
allows FamilyMart to order products based on actual sales of individual items instead of in response to e
overall demand in a general category. By introducing the New Store System, we also aim to create an -
image in the minds of consumers that FamilyMart stores stock abundant supplies of those products actually

desired by customers. Amid evolving and diversifying consumer preferences, FamilyMart is also raising ordering
precision by analyzing customer demand for individual products based on a wide assortment of information, including
purchasing trends by the day of the week and the time of day as well as weather conditions. This information is collected
and sent from FamilyMart headquarters to franchised stores via satellite.

Introducing SATs and Sharing Ordering Responsibilities s
FamilyMart has introduced new handheld store activation terminals (SATs) that provide solid support for monitoring individual products ¥
within more than 3,800 product categories. SATS help sales staff to ascertain the state of inventories and supplies of individual products both
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on display shelves and based on actual product sales results. SATs thus serve as a beneficial tool for determining what
products should be stocked or eliminated and the appropriate volume of products to be ordered.
& There are various limits on the abilities of store managers to carry out product monitoring and ordering single-
handedly. With this in mind, FamilyMart is working to promote a sharing of the ordering burden among store
personnel by building a structure that permits all store staff to place product orders.

Maximizing the Capabilities of Store Staff
A key to realizing our goal of dividing the responsibilities for product ordering is to raise the skill
levels of our store personnel, who are ultimately responsible for the frontline implementation
of QSC. Therefore, staff training is a top management issue at FamilyMart. To facilitate its
staff-training activities, in April 2000 FamilyMart began the full-scale implementation of a
training program called the Store Staff Total System (SST). SST is a systematic program
that emphasizes attracting, educating, motivating, and remunerating staff. Under this
program, training is implemented in stages—beginner, intermediate, and advanced
stages—to ensure that staff continually raise their skill levels. SST will permit
store staff to acquire vital know-how on product ordering among other skills.
& The implementation of SST has already yielded such significant results
as allowing a large number of franchised stores to achieve steady improve-
ments in QSC. As mentioned, SST also promotes a sharing of ordering
responsibilities at individual stores, facilitates the collection of various
types of information, and helps FamilyMart respond rapidly and accu-
rately to customer needs. In addition, the introduction of SST has
generated other benefits, including encouraging staff to take a pro-
active approach to their jobs as well as promoting a heightened
sense of responsibility. In quantitative terms, SST has yielded sales
increases that range from 3% to 20% for all product categories
at franchised stores.
& FamilyMart is not resting on these achievements and believes
that ongoing efforts to attain higher levels of QSC are crucial. Store
supervisors, who are vital to the operations of franchised stores,
provide support by using their personal experience and utilizing
mobile terminals to access data gathered from point-of-sale (POS)
terminals and order-related information from data warehouses.
Through the previously mentioned measures, FamilyMart intends to
build optimal store management strategies as it works hand in hand
with franchised stores.
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Expanding Our Store Network

Confronted once again with harsh business conditions in
fiscal 2001, FamilyMart focused its store network develop-
ment activities on opening high-quality new stores. Through
such efforts, FamilyMart expanded its network of stores by 606
stores, to 7,616 stores at fiscal year-end, comprising 5,812
stores, including those operated by area franchising companies,

in Japan and 1,804 stores overseas.

& Fiscal 2001 saw FamilyMart make significant strides in expanding its
presence in Japan. Following the opening of our first store in Yamaguchi

Prefecture—a store in Shimanoseki Gity—in December 2000, we established

a presence in the Shikoku region by opening three stores in Kagawa Prefec-

ture in March 2001. With these new store openings, FamilyMart expanded its

presence in Japan to 37 prefectures. Also in March 2001, in Hiroshima, we expanded

the areas in which we open new stores. FamilyMart is also vigorously implementing its strategy
of achieving dominance in Chugoku, a commercial region that offers ample room for
opening additional stores.

Opening New-Style Stores

As part of its innovative store-opening strategy, in cooperation with the National
Federation of Agricultural Cooperative Association (ZEN-NOH), FamilyMart has

been opening new stores attached to self-service gasoline stations. In fiscal

2001, FamilyMart continued to emphasize the opening of new types of stores.

As a prime example, FamilyMart opened a new store inside the Mitsui Urban

Hotel, situated in the upscale Ginza district of Tokyo. We also opened stores inside

the Kansai Airport Washington Hotel (Rinko Town, Osaka) and the Sakuragicho
Washington Hotel (Yokohama). In addition, FamilyMart opened a new store in
Sunshine City, a mammoth shopping complex in the lkebukuro section of Tokyo,

and this store has continued to report robust results. Other noteworthy store openings
during the year included a store inside the Tama City Monorail’'s Chuo Daigaku/Meisei
Daigaku Station. This store has proven to be highly popular among university students.
& By making vigorous efforts to open high-quality, innovative stores, we are expanding our cus-
tomer base for FamilyMart stores while elevating FamilyMart’s name recognition level and brand image.

Strategies for Store Development in the 21st Century

Store development is the lifeblood of a CVS chain. Accordingly, increasing and strengthening store development capabilities

will be paramount for propelling FamilyMart’s ongoing development in the 21st century. As it progresses with its store development

activities, in fiscal 2001 FamilyMart will devote its energies toward realizing the objective of such policies as “becoming the number-one store
in each region” and “working to become the dominant store.”

& To support its store development initiatives, FamilyMart has introduced the new FM-GIS. Under this system, each commercial region in
Japan is divided into detailed subregions, and FamilyMart will carefully analyze and evaluate the possibilities for opening new stores within
each of these subregions. FamilyMart plans to skillfully combine data from this system with the knowledge and experience of staff in charge
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Store Development

of store development to achieve synergies that will serve as a basis for making highly precise and accurate judgments for
k determining the locations of new stores.
E . @ In fiscal 2001, we adopted a strategy for opening stores in Awajishima that emphasized opening stores with such
upgraded features as parking lots. By taking such measures, we are also able to implement our dominant store strategy
in advance of competing stores.

i~ Implementing Our Build-and-Scrap Policy and Operating Multistore Complexes
- As an essential element of its store development activities, in fiscal 2002 FamilyMart intends to continue
implementing its Build-and-Scrap strategy. In keeping with this strategy, FamilyMart plans to discuss mea-
sures to improve store performance with the owners of underperforming franchised stores that are facing
adverse operating conditions. Measures to be considered include moving store locations. In seeking more
advantageous locations, we will emphasize the selection of sites that offer sufficient space for parking
lots, which have a significant impact on drawing customers to stores. There are already numerous
instances of franchised FamilyMart stores that have surmounted various obstacles and achieved
sharp gains in performance merely by moving a short distance to a new location.

& On another front, to aggrandize the benefits of management know-how gained from operat-
ing existing stores, we also engaged in the operation of multistore complexes. Our involvement
in multistore complex operations has several advantages, chief among these being the dispersal
! iy of risk management for store operations. Also, as we aim for area dominance, multistore opera-
tions will serve as a potent weapon for restraining store openings by rival stores. In June 2001,
we plan to launch preferential measures for franchised store owners and move to establish

a system for more effectively managing multistore complexes.

FamilyMart’s Overseas Store Development Strategy

FamilyMart established its first overseas
store in 1988 with the opening of a store
in Taiwan. In December 2000, FamilyMart
reached an important milestone by open-
ing its 1,000th outlet in Taiwan. Amid
intensifying competition, FamilyMart has
rapidly expanded its store network in
Taiwan since the opening of its 500th
store there in 1997. In the future as well,
FamilyMart will make efforts to establish
market dominance, upgrade and strength-
en its infrastructure, and aggressively
expand its store network. In fiscal 2002,
Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd., plans to
make an over-the-counter share listing.

In South Korea, FamilyMart has ex-
panded its network to 659 stores since

commencing operations in that country
10 years ago. Despite sluggish personal
consumption, FamilyMart expects to
record favorable results based on local
projections that total sales in South
Korea’s CVS industry will grow.

e

FamilyMart opened its first store in
Thailand in 1993 and now operates 112
stores in that country. We plan to steadily
increase the size of this network and
achieve robust sales in the early days
of the new century.
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In any era, it goes without saying that “selling products is the crux of FamilyMart’s operations.” Accordingly,
our most vital tasks are to strengthen our merchandising capabilities along with improving store man-
agement capabilities. Based on the catchphrase “products that continually stand out,” we remain
committed to offering only products that ensure high levels of customer satisfaction.

Upgrading Our Lineup of Nakashoku Products
Our lineup of Nakashoku items accounts for one-third of sales and thus plays a vital role in determining overall sales.
In fiscal 2001, we continued to take a highly meticulous and discriminating approach to developing Nakashoku
items. At the beginning of each year, a Nakashoku product development team proposes and plans a 52-week

menu for bentos (box lunches), onigiri (rice balls), sushi, prepared noodles, bread, and side dishes. To create
Nakashoku items, FamilyMart’s product development teams draws on the collective talents of represen-

tatives from related manufacturers, chefs, and food coordinators. The team also plans the Nakashoku

lineup taking into consideration such factors as seasonal availability of foods, ingredient prices, and

marketing factors. As underlying objectives, the team aims for the creation of price competitive

and flavorful products with distinctive and appealing features. Through such efforts,

FamilyMart has created a steady stream of year-round hit products in such categories as

bentos, onigiri, and spaghetti.

& Our Kitchen-Fresh Beef Burgers offer a distinctively flavorful taste comparable to

those prepared by restaurants specializing in hamburgers. The immensely popular

Kitchen-Fresh Beef Burgers do not use additives and use bread that does not get -
soggy when microwaved. To promote sales of Kitchen-Fresh Beef Burgers, in -“"f
February 2001 FamilyMart held weekend half-price sales. Testimony to the success _a -'_"

of these promotional efforts, FamilyMart sold an average of approximately
500,000 Kitchen-Fresh Beef Burgers a day, a figure considered high even in
the hamburger industry. Over a six-week period, FamilyMart also held a limited-
supply sale of Bon Curry Bread. During this campaign, FamilyMart sold out
its entire supply of approximately five million loaves of Bon Curry Bread.

& In the second half of fiscal 2001, FamilyMart posted a 20% increase in
sales of prepared noodles from the same period of the previous fiscal year.
We achieved this increase by offering special noodles with a wide selection
of sauces matched to the tastes of consumers in specific geographic regions.

Vigorously Targeting the Growing Market
for Nakashoku ltems

Young consumers and middle-aged men account for the lion’s share of
Nakashoku item sales. However, a recent survey* revealed that amounts
spent per month on Nakashoku items in all consumer segments were growing
rapidly. Particularly noteworthy was an approximately 80% increase in spend-
ing on Nakashoku items over the past several years by homemakers and senior
citizens. To respond to the expected growth of this market, in fiscal 2002
FamilyMart will focus even more closely on the development of its Nakashoku lineup
and intends to introduce 400 new Nakashoku items, including 100 types of bentos.

* Food Service Industry Research Center
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& Qur Nakashoku product development team, which has compiled an extensive

record of achievement, plans to revamp its organizational structure to further bolster

its product creation capabilities. Also, in close collaboration with various man-

ufacturers, this team plans to create new value by jointly developing original
items, including sauces, seasonings, and side dishes.

Introducing Appealing New Nakashoku ltems
For our favorably acclaimed Tobikiri Gohan series, we have reviewed
the frequency with which we introduce new menus as well as the
number of products offered in this series. Specifically, during the year
we created more than double the number of variations offered in fiscal
2000. We also devised new concepts in our Shiki no Gohan series of
seasonal bentos. As two new pillars of our offerings in prepared noodles,
we introduced Double Sauce Items, including Tororo and Daikon
Oroshi sauces.
& FamilyMart is also going to great lengths to enhance the flavor of
its sandwiches, which account for more than 70% of sales of prepared
i bread products. These efforts are focused on upgrading the quality
] d and flavor of our bread and ingredients as well as enhancing the quality
of our popular Kitchen-Fresh Beef Burger.
& In cup-packaged noodles, which make up approximately 50% of
processed food sales, FamilyMart will continue to develop distinctive PB
cup-packaged noodles. In confectioneries and candies, FamilyMart is offer-
ing Muji Ryohin confectioneries in various sizes according to the needs of cus-
tomers. In spring 2001, FamilyMart launched sales of a new type of ice cream
containing melted cheese as an ingredient. The first such ice cream in the
industry to be developed through a tie-up with a prominent ice cream manufacturer,
this product has already become a mainstay in our lineup of original desserts.

Bolstering Our Lineup of Everyday Merchandise
We plan to fortify and increase our lineup of everyday merchandise in fiscal 2002, in line
with our goal of raising the percentage of sales of such merchandise to 30% of total PB
sales, up from 15% in fiscal 2001. To achieve this objective, we will make a full-scale launch
of our original makeup series for women in their 20s and 30s. We will also review all sizes, colors,
and patterns in our ALL DAYS PQSi line of popular, high-quality apparel and miscellaneous merchan-
dise that project a sense of simple elegance. FamilyMart also intends to expand its lineup of ALL DAYS
POSi merchandise. In cooperation with Sanrio Co., Ltd., FamilyMart is also selling Hello Kitty goods, mainly

special-sale items, on a four-to-six-week cycle.
© FamilyMart does not intend to stand pat on its achievements in merchandising and will continue to tackle new
challenges to ensure it remains on a growth path.
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The World’s First EC Franchise System
Fiscal 2001 witnessed FamilyMart’s full-fledged foray into e-commerce with the launch of its E-Retail business. Specifically,
in October 2000 we inaugurated famima.com Co., Ltd., an Internet shopping site with approximately 30,000 items. In
contrast to other CVS shopping sites, famima.com is not based on centralized management from headquarters. Instead,
franchised stores have their own on-site virtual stores, where they record and manage their own retailing activities.
The foundation of the famima.com site is our proprietary e-commerce business model, “The FamilyMart EC Franchise
System,” under which each franchised store handles and accepts famima club membership registrations from
customers. When a customer subsequently purchases an item on the famima.com site, the franchised store that
handled the registration is credited with the sale. By combining virtual shopping with physical stores, franchised
stores can significantly upgrade their store management capabilities. FamilyMart has submitted a patent application
for this innovative business model.

A New Development from famima.com
As of April 2001, there were approximately 400,000 famima club members throughout Japan, and FamilyMart aims to
increase this to two million members in fiscal 2003. At the same time, FamilyMart has launched a site compliant with

i-mode Internet protocols, famima-i. In tandem with the establishment of this site, FamilyMart launched Fami Kore Pia,

a free-of-charge magazine containing information on various subjects. Fami Kore Pia is an upgraded magazine published with

the editorial cooperation of PIA Corporation and incorporates contents gleaned from famima.com as well as famima-i. The surging
use of mobile phones has been accompanied by a steady increase in the number of i-mode users utilizing Fami Kore Pia and famima-i.
& From April 2001, we initiated a home food delivery service through a trial tie-up between famima.com and a company that specializes
in home delivery food services to senior citizens. This tie-up reflects FamilyMart’s determination to make inroads into highly promising senior
citizen markets.

Installing Famiport Multimedia Kiosks (MMKs) and ATMs in Our Stores

In December 2000, we began introducing Famiport MMKSs in our stores. These MMKs boast a diverse range of func-
tions that include providing customers with information and allowing them to order and arrange for delivery of
coupons and tickets for travel and entertainment events as well as other related products. Using MMKS,

customers can also download digital music and obtain prints from digital cameras. FamilyMart plans
to expand the range of products and services available through these MMKs. For example, in fall
2001 customers will also be able to use MMKs to apply for insurance with The Tokio Marine &

Fire Insurance Co., Ltd. We foresee an almost unlimited range of potential for Famiport MMKS,
including the handling of such government administrative tasks as issuing resident verifica-

tion certificates as well as issuing airline tickets.

& FamilyMart is also installing ATMs in its stores. As of April 2001, ATMs in FamilyMart

stores handled transactions for 21 banks and have commenced 24-hour service for several

of these banks. FamilyMart plans to have installed ATMs in 3,500 stores by spring 2002.

Applying the Strengths of Our Physical Operations
to Our Virtual Business

As we undertake our E-Retail business, we are using the strengths of FamilyMart’s physical
stores to support the e-commerce businesses of companies with which FamilyMart has formed
tie-ups. Our e-commerce payment collection agency service permits those customers unwilling to
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~ Developing Qur
E-Retail Businesses

provide credit card information on the Internet to make cash payments at any FamilyMart store. FamilyMart's Open Cash on Delivery (OCOD)
Service also allows customers to pay cash for purchases made on the Internet as well as pick up these items at FamilyMart stores.
& These services, coupled with Famiport MMKs and ATMs installed in stores, are underpinning FamilyMart’s efforts to
attract new customers. In addition, famima.com members are visiting stores to make payments and collect
ordered merchandise, which is also fueling an increase in store sales.

@® FamilyMart EC Franchise System

Customers (members) can visit the virtual store of their choice.

MBE Japan Opens an Outlet in Sunshine City

Mail Boxes Etc. franchises serve as busi-
ness centers to meet demand for business-
outsourcing services and in the small
office/nome office (SOHO) market. MBE
Japan, Inc., has concluded a master
franchise agreement with Mail Boxes Etc.
USA, Inc., of the United States. MBE Japan,
established as a wholly owned FamilyMart
subsidiary, is developing its network of
directly owned and franchised outlets. In
March 2001, MBE Japan received an
investment from ITOCHU Pulp & Paper
Corp.

In February 2001, the MBE Sunshine
60 outlet, a directly managed outlet, was
opened in the lkebukuro district of Tokyo.
The MBE Sunshine 60 outlet offers one-
stop business solutions by providing a

significantly upgraded range of services
that includes sales of airline tickets
through a tie-up with Pacific Tour Systems
Co., Ltd. The outlet is also carrying out
trials of various services targeted
at non-Japanese customers, including

This on-line franchise
system is designed to
allow easy access to
every store in the
FamilyMart network
through a single on-line
site, famima.com.

T

FamilyMart headquarters
handles each virtual store

as it does actual franchised
stores and provides manage-
ment guidance in this area.

PC rentals that integrate software allow-
ing the use of various Asian languages.
The offering of such services highlights
MBE Japan’s commitment to further
developing its business.

FamilyMart 2001
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,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, eview of Operations .| Supported by .
a Strong Infrastructure

Toward Optimal Logistics

Since fiscal 1997, FamilyMart has made steady strides in implementing its Logistics Infrastructure Plan. This plan was
devised based on the concepts “product shipments by temperature range,” “independent deliveries in each
region,” and “mixed-lot deliveries.” The Logistics Infrastructure Plan is aimed at ensuring that strong-selling
merchandise arrives at stores prior to peak demand periods. Strenuous efforts to guarantee timely deliveries
to our stores are yielding significant results and represent a key strategy for further enhancing our out-

standing merchandising capabilities and raising the level of precision ordering at franchised stores.
& Shipping products by temperature range involves preserving products at their respective optimal
temperatures between the production plant and store to ensure products reach customers at
the pinnacle of freshness. Carrying out independent deliveries within each region requires the
- establishment of logistics bases that can autonomously supply each geographic region to
~._ensure stable just-in-time (JIT) deliveries of products demanded by customers. Mixed-lot
. deliveries entail the handling of products with different temperature requirements at the
- same distribution centers and using trucks partitioned according to temperature while
:'working to raise the efficiency and preciseness of deliveries. By combining these three

i . L - concepts, we have upgraded our distribution capabilities in a number of key areas.

Reform of Our Logistics Network Yields Significant Results
In fiscal 1997, FamilyMart operated 204 delivery centers for handling products
according to their respective temperature requirements. In its unending quest to
enhance efficiency, FamilyMart had streamlined these facilities into 89 centers as of
fiscal 2001. FamilyMart has also made important headway in constructing integrated
distribution centers that combine delivery centers with production facilities for bentos
and desserts. By fiscal 2001 year-end, we had 14 of these centers and plan to
open two more in fiscal 2002. Our Toda, Fukushima, and Tohoku centers use delivery
vehicles equipped with global positioning system (GPS) units that allow these
centers to promptly dispatch alternate delivery vehicles when a primary vehicle is
caught in traffic or in the unlikely event of a mechanical breakdown. By utilizing
GPS, we have achieved a 99.9% JIT delivery rate, defined as deliveries within 15
minutes of scheduled arrival.
& Infiscal 2001, we focused on rationalizing our delivery system for frozen foods
and also introduced “stock-and-through” delivery to promote smoother deliveries.
Supporting this “stock-and-through” delivery are the western Kanto, eastern
Kanto, and Chubu stock centers, which commenced operation during fiscal 2001.
& The reform of its logistics infrastructure has improved several areas of
FamilyMart’s distribution, including reduced delivery times, decreased number of
delivery runs to each store, and significantly shorter lead times from ordering to delivery.
& FamilyMart is also improving delivery vehicle load ratios. In fiscal 2001, an average
of 10 trucks were required to make deliveries to each store daily, down from 22
trucks in fiscal 1991. Besides reducing delivery costs and workloads at each store,
fewer truck deliveries contribute to environmental protection by lowering the volume of
exhaust emissions and cutting energy usage.
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iy CVS-Style Environmental

Protection

Aiming to Become an Environment-Friendly CVS

FamilyMart has obtained ISO 14001 certification for all its business offices and stores. We are now implement-
ing specific measures based on the slogan “Let each person love nature and protect the environment.”
Examples of measures taken include using containers and wrapping that do not emit toxic gases when
incinerated, introducing environment-friendly staff uniforms and such sales promotion materials as
flags, and utilizing delivery vehicles that place minimal burden on the environment.

& FamilyMart once again demonstrated its commitment to protecting the environment in fiscal

2001 when it commenced operation of a waste material recycling system in the 23 wards of

Tokyo as well as in Kyoto. FamilyMart also opened a new outlet in Nagoya that uses the CVS

industry’s first integrated heat storage system.

& Also in fiscal 2001, FamilyMart opened a new Eco-Shop in Sendai that integrates

a solar power system and energy conservation system. This store became FamilyMart’s

10th Eco-Shop, following the opening of the first in 1997. Also in fiscal 2001, we added

14 new items to our We Love Green lineup of environment-friendly PB daily-use mer-

chandise and now offer 30 such items.

& Details about the previously mentioned activities are explained in the FamilyMart

Environmental Activity Report. This publication is distributed to consumers, various | T eaa

types of organizations, and companies. The 2000 version of this report included, for eyt =
the first time, a section on environmental auditing, which made public FamilyMart’s

expenditures and results in its environment protection efforts. " id
& To publicize its environmental activities, FamilyMart holds We Love Green con- J = s
certs. At these concerts, FamilyMart solicits donations for protecting the natural
environment of Oze and distributes the funds to the Oze Protection Committee
Organization. To show its gratitude for these funds, this organization sent a letter of S o~
appreciation to FamilyMart. In addition, FamilyMart was presented with the Clean T
Consumer Award from Green Consumer Tokyo Net and the Tokyo Chamber of

Commerce. FamilyMart was presented with this in recognition of its promotion of an

environment-friendly CVS chain and its development of We Love Green products.

& In the future, FamilyMart intends to carry out its operations in the 21st century

in a manner consistent with maintaining the natural beauty of the Earth.

Cooperating with Save the Children and :‘ tj‘,’"‘“”'{"_ N
Helping Promote the Spread of Donor Cards ‘ R

In cooperating with Save the Children Japan (SCJ), FamilyMart has placed donation

boxes in each of its stores since July 1993. SCJ is an independent self-supporting
nongovernmental organization that provides assistance for improving the educa-

tion and lifestyles of children, mainly in Asian countries. As of February 2001, thanks

to the goodwill of its patrons, FamilyMart stores had collected a cumulative total of
¥283 million in donations since 1993.

& In April 1999, FamilyMart placed organ donor cards in all its stores. By doing so,
FamilyMart is providing people willing to become organ donors with the opportunity to
obtain a donor card.
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Consolidated Five-Year Summary

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended the last day of February

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (except per share data and other data) (Note 1)
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 2001
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:
Operating revenues:
Franchise commission from franchised stores ... ¥111,729 ¥ 96,570 ¥ 94,143 ¥ 86,562 ¥ 76,075 $ 963,181
Net sales of Company-owned stores............... 54,122 34,016 39,124 48,797 55,677 466,569
Total operating revenues ...........ccceeeeeieiivenensn. 176,099 147,295 148,261 150,740 146,962 1,518,095
Operating INCOME .......vvveieeiiiiiiieeeeeee e 24,123 28,098 29,181 28,687 24,768 207,957
NET INCOME ...ttt 8,112 12,960 15,514 9,817 12,262 69,931
Net income per share
(inyen and U.S. dollars) .........cceeeiiiiiiiiaiiiiiinenn. ¥ 835 ¥ 18346 ¥ 1612 ¥ 1020 ¥ 1274 $ 0.7
Cash dividends per share
(inyen and U.S. dollars) .......cccceeeiviiieeeeiiiiiinnennn. 38.0 38.0 34.0 30.0 25.5 0.3
FINANCIAL POSITION:
Total @SSELS .ivvviiiiiiiiiicc e ¥230,883 ¥206,492 ¥222,939 ¥208,752 ¥159,672 $1,990,371
Total shareholders’ equity........cccvveeeiiiiiireeeiiiinnnn, 126,190 122,555 112,187 99,875 93,048 1,087,845
OTHER DATA:
Franchised stores and Company’s own stores .... 5,275 4,555 4,398 4,242 3,816
Area franchised stores
(including overseas area franchised stores)........ 2,341 2,455 2,133 1,843 1,460
Total StOres......uvviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 7,616 7,010 6,531 6,085 5,276
Total shareholders ........cvvveeieiiiiiiieeiiiiceee e 31,429 16,364 8,976 11,590 8,480
Total full-time employees ........cccvveveeiiiiiiiieeeeiiiiee, 3,917 — — — —
Weighted average number of shares (thousands) ... 97,683 96,312 96,220 96,220 96,220

Notes: 1. Conversion into U.S. dollars has been made at the exchange rate of ¥116=U.S.$1, the rate prevailing on February 28, 2001.

2. Per share data has been adjusted for free share distributions and stock splits.
3. From fiscal 2001, total full-time employees is shown on a consolidated basis. Data for past years is not shown.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Overview of Operations

The FamilyMart Group is composed of 27 companies, including
the parent company, 20 subsidiaries (including 7 consolidated
subsidiaries), and 6 affiliated companies. The Group’s main
business is the operation of franchised convenience stores,
which includes logistics as well as various related services.

In fiscal 2001, consolidated total operating revenues increased
19.6%, to ¥176,099 million. This was mainly due to such factors
as an increase in revenues from franchised stores accompany-
ing a net increase in the total number of stores operated. The
addition of sales of Taiwan FamilyMart, which became a newly
consolidated subsidiary during the fiscal year under review,
also contributed to the increase.

However, net income decreased 37.4%, to ¥8,112 million,
due mainly to the provision for the shortfall of funds in planned

assets for employees’ retirement benefits.

In convenience store operations, total sales of all chain stores,
including those of the parent company and four consolidated
subsidiaries that are domestic and overseas area franchised
companies (including two companies merged in September 2000),
increased to ¥937,395 million. When including four domestic
and overseas area franchised companies that are accounted
for by the equity method, total net sales of all chain stores in
the FamilyMart Group reached ¥1,042 billion, marking the first
time that the FamilyMart Group has achieved sales of ¥1 trillion.

In store development activities, through our regional system,
which integrates store operation and development functions,
we are striving to maintain or expand our dominant position in
specific geographic regions. As part of these efforts, FamilyMart
made a net increase of 217 stores during the fiscal year, includ-
ing the opening of its first store in Yamaguchi Prefecture. Also,
in September 2000 FamilyMart merged two area franchised

companies and took over the operations of those companies’

Total Operating Operating Income Net Income
Revenues
(¥ Millions) (¥ Millions) (¥ Millions)
200,000 30,000 @ 16,000 @
160,000 (@
12,000 @
20,000 @
120,000 @
8,000 @
80,000 @
10,000 @
4,000 j®
40,000 @
0 0 0
97’98’99 00 '01 '97 '99  '00 01 97’98’99 00 '01
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508 stores. Therefore, as of the end of the fiscal year, the number
of stores operated by FamilyMart increased by 720 stores, to
5,275 stores, and the number of prefectures covered increased
by 8, to 32.

When including the stores of six domestic and overseas area
franchised companies, the total number of stores in the FamilyMart
chain at the end of the fiscal year amounted to 7,616 stores. In
overseas store operations, FamilyMart has expanded store oper-
ations in other countries in Asia. In particular, Taiwan FamilyMart
opened its 1,000th store in December 2000.

In accordance with the Company’s policy concerning
the distribution of dividends that are stable and consistent with
the continuous growth of operations, even when the business
environment is difficult, the parent company declared cash divi-
dends applicable to fiscal 2001, including dividends paid for the
interim period, of ¥38 per share, the same as in the previous

fiscal year.

Operating Results

(Analysis of Revenues, Costs, and Expenses)

Total consolidated operating revenues increased by ¥28,804 mil-
lion, or 19.6%, to ¥176,099 million. These revenues consist of
revenues from franchised stores (franchise commission from
franchised stores), net sales of Company-owned stores,

and other operating revenues.

Looking at individual revenues, in our convenience store
business, franchise commission from franchised stores increased
by ¥15,159 million, or 15.7%, to ¥111,729 million. This robust
increase was primarily because Taiwan FamilyMart was con-
solidated during the fiscal year based on the management
control concept and because of an increase in the number
of stores resulting from the merger of two area franchised
companies that were previously accounted for by the equity
method. Franchise commission from franchised stores

accounted for 63.4% of total operating revenues.

Net Income per Share Cash Dividends per Share Total Shareholders’ Equity
(¥) (¥) (¥ Millions)
200 40 150,000 @
150 @ 30
100,000 @
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50,000 |@
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FamilyMart 2001

L9



On the other hand, net sales of Company-owned stores
increased by 59.1%, to ¥54,122 million. This gain was due
mainly to the addition of sales from stores belonging to the
newly consolidated Taiwan FamilyMart.

During the fiscal year under review, all distribution services
previously carried out by a consolidated subsidiary were out-
sourced to a company outside the FamilyMart Group with
the aim of further raising the efficiency of our distribution structure.
Therefore, during the fiscal year under review, the difference in
offsetting revenues against expenses involved in the distribution
of goods is recorded in other operating revenues.

Other operating revenues increased by ¥1,714 million,
or 20.1%, to ¥10,248 million. This increase was mainly due to
the addition of sales from stores belonging to Taiwan FamilyMart,
which was newly included in the scope of consolidation in the
year under review.

Operating revenues from overseas operations accounted
for ¥26,331 million, or 15.0%, of FamilyMart’s total operating
revenues. These revenues were from FamilyMart’s operations
in the Asian region, such as those in Taiwan and Thailand.

Total consolidated operating expenses increased by
¥32,779 million, or 27.5%, to ¥151,976 million, overriding the
19.6% increase in revenues. This was due mainly to an increase
in rent as well as growth in sales promotion and advertising
expenses aimed at strengthening market penetration.

As a result of the preceding, operating income decreased
by ¥3,975 million, or 14.1%, to ¥24,123 million. The ratio of

DO
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operating income to operating revenue fell 5.4 percentage
points, to 13.7%, from 19.1% in the previous fiscal year.

Other expenses—net significantly increased by ¥7,006 million,
to ¥9,539 million, and this was a principal reason for the drop
in income. This increase was due mainly to a ¥3,100 million
loss on devaluation of treasury stock, marketable securities
and investment securities; a ¥4,856 million loss on provision
for the shortfall of funds in planned assets for employees’
retirement benefits aimed at strengthening the Company’s
financial position; and a ¥496 million loss for accompanying
the early introduction of mark-to-market accounting. The
allowance for employees’ retirement benefits was made to
cover insufficient provisions for projected benefits obligations.
The ¥496 million loss accompanying the early introduction of
mark-to-market accounting was due to a devaluation loss of
a golf club membership, expected losses on leasehold deposits,
and impairment in unlisted stocks. These were undertaken to
strengthen the Company’s financial condition.

As a result of the above, income before income taxes and
minority interests decreased by ¥10,981 million, or 43.0%, to
¥14,584 million. Net income decreased by ¥4,848 million, or
37.4%, to ¥8,112 million, from the previous year. The corporation
tax charge decreased by ¥1,711 million due to the early adoption
of deferred tax accounting from the fiscal year under review.

As a consequence of the previous factors, net income
per share decreased by ¥51.1, to ¥83.5.



Financial Position

Total year-end assets increased by ¥24,391 million, or 11.8%,
to ¥230,883 million, due to an expansion of the scope of
consolidation.

By asset classification, net property and store facilities
increased by ¥7,706 million, to ¥62,453 million. This was due
mainly to the inclusion of assets of the newly consolidated sub-
sidiary, Taiwan FamilyMart, as well as investments in new stores.

Investments and other assets increased by ¥15,128 million,
to ¥87,915 million. The main reasons for this increase were
a ¥7,260 million increase in leasehold deposits, a ¥5,526 million
increase in investment securities, and a ¥1,812 million increase
in software. Also, the Company recorded deferred tax assets
of ¥2,332 million due to the previously mentioned adoption
of deferred tax accounting.

On the other side of the balance sheet, total liabilities
increased by ¥17,835 million, or 21.4%, to ¥101,280 million,
from the previous fiscal year-end. Current liabilities increased
by ¥11,563 million, to ¥85,647 million. This increase in current
liabilities was mainly due to an ¥8,086 million increase in payables
accompanying the expansion of the scope of consolidation
and an increase in the number of stores.

Long-term liabilities increased by ¥6,272 million, to ¥15,633
million. This was due to mainly a ¥4,879 million increase in retire-
ment benefits for employees.

Minority interests increased by ¥2,921 million from the end

of the previous fiscal year, to ¥3,413 million. This increase was

due to minority shareholders in Taiwan FamilyMart, a newly
consolidated subsidiary.

Shareholders’ equity increased by ¥3,635 million from the
end of the previous fiscal year, to ¥126,190 million. This was
due to an increase in retained earnings. The shareholders’ equity
ratio declined 4.8 percentage points, from 59.4% to 54.6%, due
to an increase in total assets because of the consolidation

of Taiwan FamilyMart.

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year amounted
to ¥45,806 million, primarily reflecting expenditures for the pur-
chase of property and store facilities and intangible assets.

Net cash flows provided by operating activities amounted
to ¥23,305 million. This consisted mainly of income before
income taxes and minority interests and such noncash items
as depreciation and amortization.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥30,980 mil-
lion. This consisted mainly of investments in the opening of new
stores, the refurbishment of existing stores, and the further up-
grading of information systems. A portion of surplus funds
were allocated for long-term fund management.

Furthermore, net cash used in financing activities amounted
to ¥6,160 million. This consisted mainly of payments for pur-
chase of treasury stock due to the adoption of a stock option

plan and for the distribution of dividends.

FamilyMart 2001
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries
February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000

Millions of Yen

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

2001 2000 2001
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ........uuviiiiiiiiiiee e ¥ 45,806 ¥ 57,419 $ 394,879
TIME AEPOSITS et teies ettt e e e et bbbttt et e et e e e e e eaaeaaas 3,104 263 26,759
Marketable securities (NOE B).........uvvvieeiiiiiiiiie it 1,744 851 15,034
Receivables:
Due from franchised Stores (NOE 5) ......coovvviiiieiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiee e 7,533 5,919 64,940
(107 SR 8,981 7,304 77,422
Allowance for doubtful aCCOUNTS......eiiiiiiiiiieieiiiiiie e (680) (716) (5,862)
Merchandise and SUPPIES .....vveeeeriiiiiieeeiiiiiii et 5,911 2,362 50,957
Deferred tax assets (Notes 2 (j) and 11) ..oovvveeeiiiiiiiieieiiiiee e 828 7,138
Prepaid expenses and other current assets...........cooceeciiiiiiiiiiiiicceccceceeeee, 7,288 5,556 62,828
TOtal CUIMENT ASSELS ...vvvviriiiiieieiii e e e e e e 80,515 78,958 694,095
PROPERTY AND STORE FACILITIES:
7= o PSP 14,705 13,340 126,767
Buildings and STrUCTUIES ........eviiiiiiiiiiiiee e 46,227 40,433 398,509
Machinery and EQUIPIMENT .....uuuuuriiiiiiiiiieieeee e e e e e se bbb eeeeaeeeeaaaeeas 2,852 2,522 24,586
FUrNItUre and fiXEUMES ..vvvuuiiie it e e e e e e e e e eaaaaens 41,936 32,559 361,517
CONSEIUCTION 1N PrOGIESS ..uvvieiiiieeiiiieeaiite e iee ettt e e et et e et eesnteeeesaaeeannaeeens 497 163 4,285
e L PP PR 106,217 89,017 915,664
Accumulated depreCiation ..........cccuviee i (43,764) (34,270) (377,276)
Net property and store facilities .....uuvvvveveriieiiiiie 62,453 54,747 538,388
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
INvestment SeCUritieS (NOTE B) .....coiuvveiiieiiiiiiie e 8,860 3,334 76,379
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries
and associated companies (NOTE 4)........ueeeeiiiiiiiieaaiiiiie e 2,493 5,708 21,491
S0 107 T PSRRI 6,334 4,522 54,604
GOOAWIIl (NOTE 7) vttt ettt ettt e et e et e e e e et ee e e e 1,407 989 12,129
LeasenOId AEPOSIES ...coiiiiiiiiiiiiit ittt 62,347 55,087 537,474
Foreign currency translation adjustmentsS..........coooviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee, 883 874 7,612
Deferred tax assets (Notes 2 (j) and 11) ..ooovvveiiiiiiiiiiiciieececceee e 2,332 20,104
(@1 =T TSt £ PSR R: 3,259 2,273 28,095
Total investments and other asSets .....covvveieiiiiiiiviiiiiiiieieeeeeeeenn, 87,915 72,787 757,888
LI 2L 2\ PP ¥230,883 ¥206,492 $1,990,371
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Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
2001 2000 2001
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term bank 10aNS (NOTE 8)......cuveviiiiriiiiiieiieeeeie e e e e ie e seeanis ¥ 1,051 ¥ 240 $ 9,060
Payables:
B = o (SN L0 (=TSO PPPPPIN 2,525 253 21,767
Trade for franchised and Company-owned StOreS ..........cccvvveeeeiiiivreeeeeninns 45,106 37,020 388,845
Due to franchised stores (Note 5) ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 2,485 2,882 21,422
(@107 PSP 14,127 9,586 121,785
Income taxes payable (NOtE 1) .o 1,907 8,659 16,440
Utility payments received (NOE 5) .....ouvveiiiiieiiiiiiiiiie e 15,127 12,365 130,405
ACCIUET EXPENSES ... tuiiiiitititettereeetteaeateeeaaaaasaasa s bbb bbb bbb ererttaeaeaseeeaaeaeas 1,853 1,818 15,974
Other current IaIltIES v.vvvvevviiiiiic e 1,466 1,261 12,638
Total current HabITIES ....vvviiiii e 85,647 74,084 738,336
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term bank 10ans (NOE 8) ......cciueveiiiieeiiii it 206 214 1,776
Retirement benefits—employees (Notes 3 and 9) .......coovviviieeiiiiiiiiieieiiiie. 4,994 115 43,052
Retirement benefits—directors and corporate auditors (Note 9)..................... 420 583 3,621
Leasehold deposits received from franchised Stores..........cocvvvvvvvvvvreeeeeeenenn.. 10,007 8,449 86,267
Other long-term labilItIES ......cciivvieeiiic i 6 51
Total long-term labilities ........vviieiiiiiiiiee e 15,633 9,361 134,767
MINORITY INTERESTS ..ottt e erae e 3,413 492 29,423
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 12)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Notes 10 and 15):
Common stock, ¥50 par value—
authorized, 250,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding, 97,683,133 shares in 2001 and 2000.................. 16,659 16,659 143,612
Additional Paid-iN CAPITAL ......uuvrriiiiiiiiiiiier e 17,057 17,057 147,043
Retained BariNgS. ... ...uiiiiiiiiiiii e 94,179 88,854 811,888
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale SeCUrties ...........ocvvviiiiiiiieesiiciiece 26 224
TOTAI ettt 127,921 122,570 1,102,767
TrEASUNY STOCK ...ttt ettt e e e eae e (1,731) (15) (14,922)
Total shareholders’ EQUILY........uuuruereiiriiiiiiieeeee e 126,190 122,555 1,087,845
LI 2L 2\ PP ¥230,883 ¥206,492 $1,990,371

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

FamilyMart 2001 @ &



Consolidated Statements of Income

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries
Years Ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
2001 2000 2001
OPERATING REVENUES:
Franchise commission from franchised stores (Note 5) .........cccovviiiiiiieriiinenn. ¥111,729 ¥ 96,570 $ 963,181
Net sales of Company-OWNEA STOMES .......ccvvviieeieiiiiiieeeeeiiier e e e e 54,122 34,016 466,569
Freight and distribution fees from suppliers (Note 13).......cccceeeeeiiiiiiiiieiiiinnnn. 8,175
Other operating revenues (Notes 4, 5 and 13) ....ccoviiiiiieeiiiiiieeec e 10,248 8,534 88,345
Total OPErating FEVENUES ......uuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeaaea s ssbibababeeeeees 176,099 147,295 1,518,095
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales of Company-0owned StOreS .........uuvveeiiiiiiiiee i 38,135 23,871 328,750
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Notes 9, 12 and 13) ................ 113,841 95,326 981,388
Total 0PErating EXPENSES ....vuvvrrirriiiiiiiiiiiieteeeeeeaeae e e s erereeees 151,976 119,197 1,310,138
OPErating INCOMIE ....ceiuiiieiiii ettt 24,123 28,098 M
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):
INterest and AIVIAENAS ...uuiiiiiiiiieeecie e e e e e e e eaaaaaes 525 402 4,526
Equity in earnings of associated COMPANIES.........cuvveieeiiiiiiiieee i 280 444 2,414
Gain on sales of marketable and investment securities—net.......................... 2,567 701 22,129
Loss on devaluation of treasury stock
and marketable and investment SECUNLIES ...........cceeiiiiiiieeiiiiiiieece e (3,100) (673) (26,724)
Loss on disposals/sales of property and store facilities ...........ccceeivveeiiirennnee. (2,088) (1,989) (18,000)
Loss on cancellations of lease CoNtracts.........cooooiueieiieiiiiiiiieeiiiiiee e (1,819) (1,304) (15,681)
Provision for employees’ retirement benefits (Notes 3and 9).......c.eeeeevinneeee. (4,856) (41,862)
OTNEINET .t (1,048) (264) (9,035)
Other EXPENSES—NEL........uviiiiiiiiiie et a e (9,539) (2,533) (82,233)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTERESTS.............. 14,584 25,565 125,724
INCOME TAXES (Note 11):
(O =" 0| PRSP 8,257 12,762 71,181
DS][ =T PSPPSR (1,711) (14,750)
Total INCOME TAXES ..ottt 6,546 12,762 56,431
MINORITY INTEREST IN NET LOSS ..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiee e 74 157 638
NETINCOME ... e e e e e e e a e s anaa e ¥ 8,112 ¥ 12,960 $ 69,931
Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK:
INET INCOIME ...ttt e e e ¥ 835 ¥ 134.6 $ 0.7
Cash dividends applicable to the year............cccociiiiiiiiiiii 38.0 38.0 0.3

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements
of Shareholders’ Equity

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries
Years Ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000

Outstanding
Number of
Shares of

Common Stock

Millions of Yen

Unrealized

Gain on
Retained  Available-for-  Treasury
Earnings Sale Securities ~ Stock

BALANCE, MARCH 1, 1999

Net income

Cash dividends, ¥36 per share .........ccccccveieeiiiiiiieeiiiiieen
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors ...........cccveeeeines

Purchase/sales of treasury stock

Issuances of new shares on the share for share exchanges .....

BALANCE, FEBRUARY 29, 2000

Adjustment of retained earnings for the adoption

of deferred tax accounting method (Note 2 (j))

Net income

Cash dividends, ¥38 per share

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors

Purchase of treasury stock (Note 10)
Loss on devaluation of treasury stock

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities of foreign
associated companies accounted for by the equity method:

Transfer from retained earnings
Net unrealized loss during the year

BALANCE, FEBRUARY 28, 2001

96,219,633 ¥16,586 ¥16,136 ¥79,498 ¥ (33
12,960
(3,464)
(140)
18
1,463,500 73 921
97,683,133 16,659 17,057 88,854 (15)
1,356
8,112
(3,696)
(94)
(3,488)
1,772
(353) ¥353
(327)
07,683,133 ¥16,650 ¥17,057 ¥94,179 ¥ 26  ¥(1,731)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Unrealized
Gain on

Common Additional Retained

Available-for-  Treasury

Stock  Paid-in Capital Eamnings Sale Securities ~ Stock

BALANCE, FEBRUARY 29, 2000...............cccccoeiiieiiieniiieiien

Adjustment of retained earnings for the adoption

of deferred tax accounting method (Note 2 (j))

Net income

Cash dividends, $0.33 per share ..................
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors

Purchase of treasury stock (Note 10)
Loss on devaluation of treasury stock

................... $143,612 $147,043 $765,983 $ (129
11,689
69,931
(31,862)
(810)
(30,069)
15,276

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities of foreign
associated companies accounted for by the equity method:

Transfer from retained earnings...........coooviiiiieeiiiiiiiieeeneins
Net unrealized loss during the year...........ccoocveeiiieiiiieciiieene

BALANCE, FEBRUARY 28, 2001 ..............cccccooiiiiiiiice,

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

(3,043) $3,043
(2,819)

.................. $143,612 $147,043 $811,888 $ 224 $(14,922)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries
Year Ended February 28, 2001

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
2001 2001
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income before income taxes and MINOrity INTEIESTS ......ciiiiiiiiiii i ¥14,684 $125,724
Adjustments for:
gTetelaaTo R = N T T o= T PPN (15,041) (129,664)
Depreciation and amortiZatioN..........ccooiiiiiiiiieeer et ea e e e e e e e e e e 12,059 103,957
Allowance for dOUDTIUl ACCOUNTS ........iiiii et e e e e e et eeseab e eeeaaes 470 4,052
Provision for retirement DENETIS ...t 4,651 40,095
Equity in earnings of associated COMPANIES .. .vvvviiiiiviiiie ettt e it e e e e e e s e e e s ssbbaaeea s (280) (2,414)
Loss on devaluation/sale of treasury stock, marketable and investment securities—net............. 545 4,698
Loss on disposal/sale of property and store facilities—net ..o 2,088 18,000
LLoss on cancellation of 18aSE CONTIACTS .......uuvuiiiiieiieiee e e s 1,220 10,517
Bonuses to directors and corporate QUAITOrS .........ccuvereeeiiiiiiie et siiie e e e e e e s a e (94) (810)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in due from/to franchiSed STOrES—NET .........coiuiiiiiiiieiiiieii e (2,015) (17,371)
Increase in merchandise and SUPPIIES .....evieiiuiiieeeiiiiieee ettt e et a e eeeaeas (1,264) (10,897)
INcrease in PayablES—trade..........ccoiiiiie e 4,432 38,207
Increase in utility paymMeENtS MECEIVEA .....uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e e 2,762 23,810
(@11 0T TSP P PP PP PP (812 (6,999
L] t= U= 0TS 1 1Y ) £ PR 8,721 75,181
Net cash provided by operating aCVItIES .....vvvuvviviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 23,305 200,905
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
INCrease in tiMe AEPOSIES—NEL .......ciuviiiiii it e e s e e e e s e e e e s eaaaeeas (2,841) (24,491)
Purchases of marketable and iNVEStMENt SECUNMTIES ..........vvviiiiiiiiiiiie e (9,592) (82,690)
Proceeds from sales of marketable and investment SECUNtIES ..........ccvvvvvviiiiiieeieieeeeceve e 4,686 40,397
Purchases of property and store facilities, software, goodwill and other intangible assets ............. (17,105) (147,457)
Proceeds from sales of property and store facilities, software, goodwill and other intangible assets ... 1,254 10,810
Payments of [eaSenold AEPOSIES.......uvuiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e s e e e e e s eaaae s (9,106) (78,500)
Refunds Of 162SENO0IA AEPOSITS .. .uuuvuiiiiiiiiiiiit ittt et e et e e e e e e s e s s s s s ababaaeaeee 1,963 16,922
Receipts of leasehold deposits received from franchised StOreS ..........cuvvvvvviiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee i 1,269 10,940
Refunds of leasehold deposits received from franchised StOres..........cooovvvvieeeiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiee i, (732) (6,310)
(O T e 0T PP RPN (776) (6,690)
Net cash used in INVEStING ACTIVITIES .. ..vvviiiiiiiiii e (30,980) (267,069)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in short-term bank [08NS—NEL.........uiiiiiiiii e 821 7,078
PUrchase Of TrE@SUNY STOCK ....uuiiiiiiiiiit et e e e e a e e et a e e e e s stbaeeas (3,488) (80,069)
Proceeds from minority interest Shareholders.............veiiiiiiiiiiiii e 198 1,707
1Y/ To (=TT S o= Lo PSPPSR (8,691) (81,819)
Net cash used in finaNCINg aCHVItIES ... ..vviieiiiiiiiic e (6,160) (63,103)
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ... 121 1,043
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ..........cccociiiiiiiiiiieiiiie st (13,714) (118,224)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OF NEWLY CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES,

BEGINNING OF YEAR ... ... ..ottt e et e et e e e e e e st e e e st e e et e e e anba e e anaeeeenneas 2,101 18,112
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR ..............cccooiiiiieiiie e 57,419 494,991
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ...........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e ¥45,806 $394,879
NONCASH FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES:

Assets increased by consolidation of subsidiaries previously acounted for by the equity method .... ¥12,481 $107,595
Liabilities increased by consolidation of subsidiaries previously accounted for by the equity method... 7,628 65,759

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries
Years Ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000

1. BASIS OF PRESENTING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the
Japanese Securities and Exchange Law and its related accounting regulations, and in conformity with accounting principles and
practices generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements of Inter-
national Accounting Standards. The consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions
other than Japan.

Effective March 1, 2000, a consolidated statement of cash flows is required to be prepared under Japanese accounting stan-
dards. The statement of cash flows for the year ended February 28, 2001, is presented herein. Such statement for the year ended
February 29, 2000 is not presented, as Japanese accounting standards do not require retroactive preparation or presentation for
prior years’ financial statements.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the consoli-
dated financial statements issued domestically in Japan in order to present them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside
Japan. In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial statements include information which is not required under accounting
principles generally accepted in Japan but is presented herein as additional information.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which FamilyMart Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) is incorporated and operates. The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely
for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥116 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange
at February 28, 2001. Such translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be
converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements as of February 28, 2001 include the accounts of the Company and its 7 significant subsid-
iaries (together, the “Group”). Consolidation of the remaining 13 subsidiaries (10 in 2000) would not have a material effect on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Effective March 1, 2000, the Group changed its consolidation scope of subsidiaries and associated companies from the application
of the ownership concept to the control or influence concept. Under the control or influence concept, those companies in which the
Parent, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations are fully consolidated, and those companies over which the
Group has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the equity method. Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd., previously
accounted for by the equity method, has been consolidated in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended February 29, 2000 have not been retroactively adjusted for this change.

Investments in 6 associated companies are accounted for by the equity method. Investments in the remaining 13 (10 in 2000)
unconsolidated subsidiaries are stated at cost. If the equity method of accounting had been applied to the investments in these
companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements would not be material.

The excess of the cost of the Company’s investments in consolidated subsidiaries and associated companies accounted for by
the equity method over its equity in the net assets at the respective dates of acquisition is being amortized over a period of 5 years.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included
in assets resulting from transactions within the Group is eliminated.

(b) Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible into cash and that are not exposed to insignificant risk

of changes in value. Cash equivalents include time deposits, certificate of deposits, commercial paper, bond funds and securities
purchased under resale agreements that represent short-term investments, all of which mature or become due within three months
of the date of acquisition.

(c) Merchandise and Supplies
Merchandise other than fast food is primarily valued at cost determined by the retail method. Fast food and supplies are stated
at cost determined by the last purchase price method.

(d) Marketable and Investment Securities
Current and non-current marketable securities are mainly stated at the lower of cost or market. Other investments are stated
at cost. Cost is determined by the average method.
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(e) Property and Store Facilities

Property and store facilities are stated at cost. Depreciation of property and store facilities of the Company and its consolidated
domestic subsidiaries is computed substantially by the declining-balance method at rates based on the estimated useful lives of
the assets, while the straight-line method is applied to the property and store facilities of consolidated foreign subsidiaries. Buildings
acquired on or after April 1, 1998 are depreciated using the straight-line method. The range of useful lives is principally from 2 to 50
years for buildings and structures, from 2 to 24 years (5 to 18 years in 2000) for machinery and equipment and from 2 to 20 years
for furniture and fixtures, respectively.

(f) Software
Capitalized software are stated at cost less accumulated amortization, which is calculated by the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives.

(g) Goodwill
Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated amortization, which is calculated by the straight-line method over 5 years.

(h) Retirement Benefits and Pension Plans
The Company has two types of pension plans for employees, a contributory fund and a non-contributory fund, to be applied
depending on the length of services upon termination. The provision for employees’ retirement benefits is computed on the basis
of the present value of projected benefit obligations less fair market value of planned assets as of balance sheet date (see Note 3).
Foreign consolidated subsidiaries provide for the amount of retirement benefits required by local accounting standards.

The annual provisions for retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors are stated at the amount, in accordance with
the bylaws of the Company, that would be required if all directors and corporate auditors retired at each balance sheet date.

(i) Leases

All leases are accounted for as operating leases. Under Japanese accounting standards for leases, finance leases that deem to
transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be capitalized, while other finance leases are permitted to be accounted
for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information is disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial statements.

(i) Income Taxes
Effective March 1, 2000, the Company and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries adopted the new accounting standard for inter-
period allocation of income taxes based on the asset and liability method. The cumulative effect of the application of interperiod
tax allocation in prior years in the amount of ¥1,356 million ($11,689 thousand) is included as an adjustment to retained earnings
as of March 1, 2000. Such cumulative effect is calculated by applying the income tax rate stipulated by enacted tax laws as of
March 1, 2000.

Deferred income taxes are recorded to reflect the impact of temporary differences between assets and liabilities recognized
for financial reporting purposes and such amounts recognized for tax purposes. These deferred taxes are measured by applying
currently enacted tax laws to the temporary differences.

(k) Appropriations of Retained Earnings
Appropriations of retained earnings at each year-end are reflected in the financial statements for the following year upon share-
holders’ approval.

(1) Foreign Currency Financial Statements

The balance sheet accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into yen at the current exchange rates as

of each balance sheet date except for shareholders’ equity, which is translated at the historical exchange rate. Differences arising
from such translation are shown as “Foreign currency translation adjustments” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Revenue and expense accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into yen at the average rate.

(m) Per Share Information
The computation of net income per share is based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding
during each year. The weighted average number of common shares used in the computation was 97,683,133 shares for 2001
and 96,311,752 shares for 2000.

Diluted net income per share is not disclosed because the Company does not have any dilutive instruments.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of income are dividends applicable
to the respective years, including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.
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3. ACCOUNTING CHANGE

Prior to February 29, 2000, the Company charged the past service costs to income upon payment of contributions to pension
funds, while the balance of the provision for retirement benefits for employees to income has been amortized over the period of
amortization of past service costs.

Effective March 1, 2000, the Company changed the policy of retirement benefits for employees to the basis of the present value
of projected benefit obligations less fair market value of planned assets as of balance sheet date in these plans.

As a result of this change, income before income taxes and minority interests, calculated using the new method, decreased
by ¥4,856 million ($41,862 thousand).

4. RELATED PARTIES AND ORGANIZATION

The Company’s main shareholder is Family Corporation Inc., which owns 30.65% of the total shares of the Company outstanding
at February 28, 2001. Family Corporation Inc. is 70% owned by Nishino Trading Co., Ltd. and 30% owned by ITOCHU Corporation,
which distribute merchandise and/or supplies for “FamilyMart” stores.

The Company is a franchiser of “FamilyMart” stores for retail sales of daily necessities to consumers. The Company allows each
independent franchisee to operate convenience stores using the specific designs and name of “FamilyMart” and provides them with
related managerial and technical know-how under a franchise agreement. Under the agreement, each franchisee is provided with a
variety of services and advice on the operation of convenience stores from the Company. In return, the franchisee is required to pay
continuing franchise commissions to the Company based on certain percentages of the respective franchised store’s gross margin
(net sales less cost of sales).

The Company allows area franchised companies to be franchisers of “FamilyMart” stores in each area, including outside Japan.
Area franchised companies are required to pay continuing royalty fees to the Company and the Company records this as “Other oper-
ating revenues.” Area franchised companies as of February 28, 2001 were as follows:

The Company’s Ownership

Name of Franchisee Area Percentage in Franchisee
Subsidiaries:
Siam FamilyMart Co., Ltd. Thailand 70.00%
Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd. Taiwan 45.80

Associated companies:

Bokwang FamilyMart Co., Ltd. Korea 21.24
Minami Kyushu FamilyMart Co., Ltd. Kagoshima and Miyazaki, Japan 49.00
Okinawa FamilyMart Co., Ltd. Okinawa, Japan 48.98
Matsuhaya FamilyMart Co., Ltd. Nagasaki and minor part of Saga, Japan 40.00

SFM HOLDING CO., LTD., 87.10% owned by the Company, is a holding company of Siam FamilyMart Co., Ltd., and MBE Japan,
Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary, is operating “MAIL BOXES ETC.” franchised stores. famima.com Co., Ltd., 50.50% owned subsid-
iary, and e-PLAT JAPAN Co., Ltd., 36.36% owned associated company, both support E-commerce operations.

Kouyou Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has managed the logistics of distribution centers for “FamilyMart”
stores since March 1, 1999, while Kouyou Trading Co., Ltd., also a wholly owned (including indirect shareholding) subsidiary of
the Company, leases various computer equipment to “FamilyMart” stores.

Family Chef Co., Ltd., 30.00% owned by the Company, produces and distributes delicatessen items to “FamilyMart” stores.
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5. TRANSACTIONS WITH FRANCHISED STORES

As discussed in Note 4 under the franchise agreement, each franchisee is provided with a variety of services and advice on the oper-
ation of convenience stores by the Company, and, in return, the franchisee is required to pay continuing franchise commissions to
the Company based on certain percentages of the respective franchised store’s gross margin (net sales less cost of sales). As the
franchiser, the Company accounts for such franchise commissions on an accrual basis.

The term of a franchise agreement is generally for 10 years and may be extended or renewed upon expiration subject to renego-
tiation of contract terms between the Company and the franchisee. The franchise agreement currently in use provides that, at the
commencement of the agreement, the franchisee shall make a cash payment to the Company in the amount of ¥1,500,000, which
is credited to income of the Company as “Other operating revenues” for the lump-sum franchise fee. The franchisee shall also pay
another ¥1,500,000 for services with respect to research, training and preparations of store opening. The remaining amount of
the later fee is used as working capital for the stores and, accordingly, is credited to “Payables: Due to franchised stores.”

Under the franchise agreement, each franchised store shall order merchandise and the store is supplied from suppliers using the
centralized buy-order system maintained by the Company. The Company then accumulates such purchase orders by the franchised
stores and pays the purchase amounts to suppliers on a monthly basis on behalf of the franchised stores. The Company records
account receivable due from franchised stores for such purchases.

Each franchised store shall make a remittance of cash from sales to the Company on a daily basis. Furthermore, the franchised
stores collect utility payments from customers on behalf of utility service providers, such as electric power companies and telecom-
munications companies, which is remitted to the Company on a daily basis.

The receipts of such charges are recorded as a liability due to utility service suppliers and presented as “Utility payments
received” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The monthly payments to purchase merchandise and other goods on behalf of each franchised store and the daily receipts
of cash from the franchised stores are accumulated and offset against each other to present the net balance due to or from each
franchised store.

The balances of “Receivables: Due from franchised stores” and “Payables: Due to franchised stores” in the accompanying con-
solidated balance sheets represent such net balances between the Company and each franchised store at the balance sheet date.

6. MARKETABLE AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Marketable and investment securities as of February 28, 2001 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Current:

Marketable EQUILY SECUITIES .. ..uvvriieiiiie ittt e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e eaaeaeeseanaees ¥1,744 $15,034

Non-current:
Marketable EQUITY SECUITIES . ..uuviiiieiiieei ittt e e e e e et e et e e e aaeeeaaeeeesiaannes ¥1,498 $12,914
(ClelV=Taalaal=Ta1aF=Tale MeTolg o ol=1 (Y olo] a o LI USRS 7,000 60,345
Other INVESTMENT SECUIMTIES ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e et b b e aaaaaaeeaeaaaaan 362 3,120
L] £ U U TR SRRSO PP ¥8,860 $76,379
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Carrying amounts and aggregate market values of current and non-current marketable equity securities included in marketable
securities and investment securities at February 28, 2001 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Current:
(@72 T4V a o =0 0 o U 1 AT PP PR PP ¥1,744 $15,034
AGGregate MAKET VAIUE ......ceiiiiiiiiei ettt et e e e e e ettt et e e e e e e e e e bbbt e eaeaeas 1,836 15,827
UNFBANIZEA GAIN ...ttt ettt ettt et et e s e st et et e eaeeae o2 s e st e b e b e et e eaaess e st e nebaeneena e s e st e nne e ¥ 92 $ 793
Non-current:
(@71 0Y, 1T =T 00T 010 | OO RSO ¥1,498 $12,914
AGIregate MAMKET VAIUE ... ..iiiiiiiie ettt e et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e ntne e e e s nnaeeeeannneeaeannes 1,486 12,810
(0 aT=Y=1 74=T o= ¥ 12 $ 104

The difference between the above carrying value and the amounts shown in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets prin-
cipally consists of unlisted foreign bonds and non-marketable securities for which there is no readily available market from which to
obtain or calculate the market value thereof.

7. GOODWILL
Goodwill at February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2001 2000 2001
Consolidation goodwiill ¥ 742 ¥ 80 $ 6,396
Acquisition goodwill............ 665 909 5,733
1o ) = PRSP ¥1,407 ¥989 $12,129

Amortization charged to income for the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 were ¥521 million ($4,491 thousand)
and ¥293 million ($2,526 thousand), respectively.

8. SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM BANK LOANS

Short-term bank loans at February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 consisted of notes to banks and bank overdrafts. The annual
interest rates applicable to the short-term bank loans ranged from 1. 018% to 4.250% and 1.375% to 7.375% at February 28, 2001
and February 29, 2000, respectively.

Long-term bank loans at February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2001 2000 2001
Unsecured loans from banks due in 2002 with interest rate of 4.5% ........cooovviiiiiiiiiiiieeiiieeeiiiiiieeee ¥206 ¥214 $1,776
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9. RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND PENSION PLANS

Total charges to income for retirement benefits—employees were ¥5,565 million ($47,974 thousand) and ¥629 million and for retirement
benefits—directors and corporate auditors were ¥105 million ($905 thousand) and ¥111 million for the years ended February 28, 2001
and February 29, 2000, respectively.

The total plan assets and total past service liabilities of the Saison Group Kosei Nenkin Kikin, a contributory pension plan which
covers retirement benefits of employees with a length of service five years or more, as of March 31, 2000 were ¥350,503 million
($3,021,578 thousand) and ¥4,929 million ($42,491 thousand), respectively.

The Company’s share of participating members of this plan is approximately 3.94%.

The plan assets and past service liabilities of a non-contributory pension plan of the Company which covers all retirement benefits
for employees with length of service less than five years and part of retirement benefits for employees with length of service five years
or more, as of August 31, 2000 were ¥572 million ($4,931 thousand) and ¥477 million ($4,112 thousand), respectively.

10. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Japanese Commercial Code (the “Code”) requires at least 50% of the issue price of new shares, with a minimum of the par
value thereof, to be designated as stated capital as determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. Proceeds in excess of
amounts designated as stated capital are credited to additional paid-in capital.

The Code also requires companies to appropriate from retained earnings to a legal reserve an amount equal to at least 10%
of all cash payments which are made as an appropriation of retained earnings until such reserve equals 25% of stated capital. The
Company’s reserve amount, which is included in retained earnings, totals ¥2,477 million ($21,353 thousand) and ¥2,090 million as
of February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000, respectively, and is not available for dividends but may be used to reduce a deficit
by resolution of the shareholders.

The Company may transfer portions of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve to stated capital by resolution of the Board of
Directors. The Company may also transfer portions of unappropriated retained earnings, available for dividends, to stated capital by
resolution of the shareholders.

Under the Code, the Company may issue new common shares to existing shareholders without consideration as a stock split
pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors. The Company may make such a stock split to the extent that the aggregate par
value of the shares outstanding after the stock split does not exceed the stated capital. However, the amount calculated by dividing
the total amount of shareholders’ equity by the number of outstanding shares after the stock split cannot be less than ¥50.

Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting held subsequent to the fiscal year to which the dividends are applicable.
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid upon resolution of the Board of Directors, subject to certain limitations imposed by
the Code.

The Company is authorized to repurchase, at management’s discretion, up to 9,600,000 shares of the Company’s stock for
the purpose of canceling the shares and charging such amounts to retained earnings.

The Company is also authorized to purchase treasury stock to be used for stock options to directors and key employees.

The balance of treasury stock recorded in shareholders’ equity as of February 28, 2001 includes treasury stock purchased
for the purpose of granting stock options to directors and key employees. As of February 28, 2001, 822,000 stock options have
been granted and are exercisable from September 1, 2001 to August 31, 2004.

Under the Code, the amount available for dividends is based on retained earnings as recorded on the Company’s books.

At February 28, 2001, retained earnings recorded on the Company’s books which is available for future dividends subject to
the approval of the shareholders and legal reserve requirements totaled ¥93,241 million ($803,802 thousand).
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11. INCOME TAXES

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted
in a normal effective statutory tax rates of approximately 42% and 47% for the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000,
respectively.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and loss carryforwards which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at
February 28, 2001, are as follows:

Thousands of
February 28, 2001 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ¥ 310 $ 2,672
Accrued bonuses..........ccccvvveeeeeeennn. 147 1,267

Retirement benefits—employees 2,046 17,638
Retirement benefits—directors and corporate auditors 176 1,517
=T 0] (=T = V1T PR 152 1,310
Loss on disposals of property and store facilities and cancellations of lease contracts 180 1,652
ENTErprise taX PAY@DIE ...ttt e et e e e ettt et e e e aaaaeaaaaane 148 1,276
QL= S 01T o= U Y o V2= U £ PRSP 1,324 11,414
Other .vvvveiiiieeicc, 260 2,242
Less valuation allowance (1,329) (11,457)
[ (=0 It =TS T £ 3,414 29,431
Deferred tax liabilities:
Special reserve for tax PUrPOSE AEPIECIAION .......iiuuiieeeiiieeeeiitiee e e ittt e e etieeessaeeesareeeeaaraeeessnaeaeesannees 207 1,784
(1T PSSR 47 405
[ =T Yo I = Y[ F= o] 111 OSSP 254 2,189
NS0 [ (=T (=10 I £ =TT < £ PR ¥3,160 $27,242

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate for the year ended February 28, 2001 and the actual effective tax
rates reflected in the accompanying consolidated statement of income is as follows:

Year ended February 28, 2001
Normal effective STAULONY 18X FAEE ..ottt e et e e s e e e ante 42.0%

Inhabitants taxes 1.2
Refund of corporate taxes.... (1.1)
Expiration of tax loss carryforwards 3.7
LT =Y OSSPSR 0.9
ACTUAI EFFECTIVE TAX FAEE ...ttt et e e e e e bbbttt e e e e e e s e bbbttt et e e e e e a4 e e bbbttt aaaeeaeaeanns 44.9%

The normal effective tax rate reflected in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year ended February 29,
2000 differs from the actual effective tax rate, primarily due to the effect of permanently non-deductible expenses and temporary
differences in the recognition of asset and liability items for tax and financial reporting purposes.

At February 28, 2001, certain subsidiaries have tax loss carryforwards aggregating approximately ¥3,512 million ($30,276 thou-
sand), which are available to be offset against taxable income of such subsidiaries in future years. These tax loss carryforwards,
if not utilized, will expire as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending February 28 (or 29) Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
¥ 85 $ 733
121 1,043
727 6,267
638 5,500
1,941 16,733
¥3,512 $30,276
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12. LEASES

The Group leases certain furniture, software and other assets.

Total rental expenses for the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 were ¥6,710 million ($57,845 thousand)

and ¥5,335 million, respectively.

Pro forma information of leased property, such as acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation, obligation under finance lease,
depreciation expense and interest expense of finance leases that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee
on an “as if capitalized” basis for the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 was as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Furniture Furniture
February 28, 2001 and Fixtures ~ Software Total and Fixtures Software Total
ACQUISITION COST...eiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et ¥40,699 ¥597 ¥41,296 $350,853 $5,147 $356,000
Accumulated depreciation..............cooiiiiiiiiiiee e (18,517) (32) (18,549) (159,629) (276) (159,905)
Net 18aSed PrOPEIY......c.ccveeeieereeeeeeee e ¥22 182 ¥565 ¥22 747 $191,224 $4,871 $196,095
Millions of Yen
Machinery and Furniture
February 29, 2000 Equipment and Fixtures Software Total
ACQUISTTION COST 1ttt ettt ettt e e e e bbbttt e e e e a4 e e e bbbttt e e aaeeaaeanennanees ¥10 ¥37,401 ¥517 ¥37,928
PaXelo10 0 U= 1 (=Yoo (=T o] (Yo = Li o] o (1) (17,613) (816) (17,930)
NEL [EASEA PrOPEITY .. eeeeiieeeiiieit ittt ettt ettt e e e e e e e e bbbttt e e e aeaeeeaan ¥ 9 ¥19,788 ¥201 ¥19,998

Obligations under finance leases:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2001 2000 2001
DUE WILNIN ONE YBAI ....veeiveeeies ittt ettt teeete et et e e e et e e teesraeeateeteesaeeetaeeaeesbeantesseeasbeaneeaseeaneeans ¥ 5,574 ¥ 4,997 $ 48,052
DUB @fIEI ONE YA ...ttt ettt et e e e e e s bbbt e e e e e e e e e e ettt bt aaaeeaaaaeeninns 18,059 15,931 155,681
Lo 7= U PSPPSR ¥23,633 ¥20,928 $203,733

Depreciation expense and interest expense under finance leases:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2001 2000 2001
Depreciation EXPENSE ......uuiiiiiiiiii ettt a e e e ¥5,575 ¥4,526 $48,060
INEEIEST BXPENSE ..o ettt e e e e e e e e e nnee s 865 757 7,457
10 = L ¥6,440 ¥5,283 $55,517

Depreciation expense and interest expense, which are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of income,

are computed by the straight-line method and the interest method, respectively.

Q0

FamilyMart 2001



The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases at February 28, 2001 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
DUE WILNIN ONE YBA ... ettt et et e et e e e e s e eas e et eeaeeaeeneens e eaeeteaneens e e s e eneees ¥ 8 $ 69
DUE @FLBI ONE VBN ...ttt o4t 4 bt e et e e e st e oottt e e e e et e _10 86
L L PSPPSRI ¥18 $155

13. FREIGHT AND DISTRIBUTION

Prior to February 29, 2000, Kouyou Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, had delivered merchandise and supplies
to each “FamilyMart” store and received freight and distribution fees from suppliers in return. Kouyou Co., Ltd. transferred such
business to outside of the Group as of March 1, 2000. As a result of this transfer, no such “Freight and distribution fees from suppliers”
and the related freight and distribution costs (included in “Selling, general and administrative expenses”) were incurred for the year
ended February 28, 2001. However, Kouyou Co., Ltd. is still responsible for the administration of the distribution centers, which
generated net fees of ¥7 million ($60 thousand) included in “Other operating revenues” for the year ended February 28, 2001.

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information about industry segments, geographic segments and operating revenues from foreign customers of the Group for
the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 were as follows:

(1) Industry Segments

The Group operates mainly in the convenience store related business. Operating revenue, operating income and total assets of
this segment exceeded 90% of the respective total amounts of all segments, while those of other segments were not significant
for comparison. Accordingly, segment information by industry is not disclosed.

(2) Geographical Segments
The geographical segments of the Group for the year ended February 28, 2001 were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Eliminations/ Eliminations/
Japan Asia Corporate  Consolidated Japan Asia Corporate Consolidated
Operating revenues
from outside the Group ¥149,768 ¥26,331 ¥176,099 $1,291,104 $226,991 $1,518,095
Interarea transfers...........cccoveevnnee. 289 ¥ (289) 2,491 $ (2,491)

Total operating revenues........ 150,057 26,331 (289) 176,099 1,293,595 226,991 (2,491) 1,518,095
Operating eXpenses.........ccovvvveeenns 119,899 26,487 5,590 151,976 1,033,612 228,336 48,190 1,310,138
Operating income (loss) ¥ 30,158 ¥ (156) ¥(5,879) ¥ 24,123 $ 259,983 $ (1,345) $(50,681) $ 207,957
ASSELS 1. ¥179,179 ¥17,818 ¥33,886 ¥230,883 $1,544,647 $153,603 $292,121 $1,990,371

Information for the year ended February 29, 2000 is not shown because operating revenues and total assets of foreign geographic
areas were immaterial.

(3) Operating Revenues from Foreign Customers

Operating revenues from foreign customers for the year ended February 28, 2001 amounted to ¥26,331 million ($226,991 thousand).
Operating revenues from foreign customers for the year ended February 29, 2000 were less than 10% of consolidated operating
revenues.
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15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The following appropriations of retained earnings at February 28, 2001 were approved at the Company’s shareholders meeting held
on May 25, 2001:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year-end cash dividends, ¥19 ($0.16) PEI SNAIE .......c.eiiveeiveiieeiireeiieiiteeie et ete et e eeesteeeteeereesrsesressaeesaeeireans ¥1,840 $15,862
Transfer to legal reserve 191 1,647
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 65 560

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with related parties for the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2001 2000 2001
Family Corporation Inc.:
PUICIESES ...ttt e et e et e e e n e e e e s ¥69,459 ¥59,054 $598,784
Payables—trade for franchised and Company-owned Stores..........cccvvvvviiieeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeenn, 4,740 4,182 40,862
Nishino Trading Co., Ltd.:
PUICIASES ... ettt et e et e e et e et e et e et e e ettt e et e et e e et e et e et e e e et eeareean ¥71,243 ¥67,671 $614,164
Payables—trade for franchised and Company-0wned StOrES .........cocvveiiveiiiieeiiieesiiieeiieeiiens 5,517 1,805 47,560
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Tohmatsu & Co.

MS Shibaura Building

13-23, Shibaura 4-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo 108-8530, Japan

Tel: +81-3-3457-7321
Fax:+81-3-3769-8508

www.tohmatsu.co.jp DEIOitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
FamilyMart Co., Ltd.:

We have examined the consolidated balance sheets of FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and consolidated
subsidiaries as of February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000, the related consolidated statements

of income and shareholders' equity for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended February 28, 2001, all expressed in Japanese yen. Our
examinations were made in accordance with auditing standards, procedures and practices generally
accepted and applied in Japan and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and
such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly the financial
position of FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries as of February 28, 2001 and February
29, 2000, the results of their operations for the years then ended, and the result of their cash flows
for the year ended February 28, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in Japan consistently applied during the period, except for the change, with
which we concur, in the accounting for retirement benefits to employees, as discussed in Note 3,

As described in Note 2, effective March 1, 2000, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with new accounting standards for consolidated financial statements and
interperiod allocation of income taxes.

Our examinations also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar
amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated
in Note 1. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside
Japan.

Do e Touckle 7opmalio .

May 25, 2001
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Corporate Data

Head Office
26-10, Higashi-lkebukuro 4-chome,
Toshima-ku, Tokyo 170-8404, Japan
Telephone: (81) 3-3989-6600

Incorporated
September 1, 1981

Full-Time Employees
2,152

D@ rFamilyMart 2001

Domestic Affiliates
Okinawa FamilyMart Co., Ltd.
Matsuhaya FamilyMart Co., Ltd.
Minami Kyushu FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

Overseas Affiliates
Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd. (Taiwan)
Bokwang FamilyMart Co., Ltd. (South Korea)
Siam FamilyMart Co., Ltd. (Thailand)

(As of February 28, 2001)
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